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INFORMATII GENERALE SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Denumire
Capltal soclal

Inregistrdri

Activitate principals

Piata de tranzactionare

Auditor

Registrul actiunilor si
actionarilor

Sediul central

SIF Imobiliare PLC (*Societatea”)

€4.430,974; 4.499.974 actluni emise, fiecare cu o valoare nominald de 1€
HE 323682, Clpru, din data de 18 lulie 2013

ISIN CY0104062217

Societate de tip holding, ce detine si finanjeazd activittile grupului in domeniul
imobiliar. Activitatea principald consts in administrare §i consultanta in domeniul

Investitiilor imobiliare.

Societatea este listatd din data de 23 Decembrie 2013 pe sistemul alternativ de
tranzactionare (ATS), categoria AeRO Standard a Bursel de Valori Bucuregti

Evoserve Auditors Ltd., Nicosia, Cipru

Depozitarul Central 5.A. Bucuresti

30 Karpenisiou, 1077 Nicosia, Cipru

SIF Imobiliare PLC este tranzactionata pe Sistemul Afternativ de Tranzactionare (CAN - ATS - AeRO} al Bursel de Valori din

Bucuresti (BVB).

Societatea a luat fiinta Tn 2013, ca urmare a deciziei SIF Banat-Crisana 5.A. de a constitut o structurd de administrare
centralizatd, dupd principiile unui management integrat, pentru un numar de companil cu activit3tl in domeniul imobiliar.
Aceasts decizie are la bazd unificarea obiectivelor, minimizarea costurilor operationale, maximizarea veniturllor si
totodats, valorificarea oportunitatilor ce exist® sau pot apirea pe plata de profil.

Constituirea SIF Imobiliare PLC a avut loc dupa realizarea unui studiu special pentru acest proiect de un consuktant Big
Four referitor la selectarea unei Jurisdictli favorabile pentru holding si ca urmare a faptului c# nu exista o lege care s&
reglementeze activitétile de tip holding in Roménia.

Valoarea capitalului social autorizat i subscris este de 4.499.974 EUR varsat integral, impariit in 4.499.974 de actiuni,
fiecare avénd valearea nominalé de 1 EUR.

Structurd actionariat SIF Imoblilare PLC 2 31.12.2019 Actiuni Procent

SIF Banat-Crisana SA 4,499,961 99,9997 %
Altl actionari 13 0.0003 %
Total 4,499,974 100 %
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INFORMATII GENERALE SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Entita{i incluse in consolidare

Filialele sunt entitéti aflate sub controlul Societ4tli. Controlul existd atuncl cand Socletatea este expus3 sau are drepturi
asupra rentabilitatli varlabile pe baza participarii sale in entitatea in care a investit si are capacitatea de a influenta acele
venituri prin autoritatea sa asupra entit4il In care s-a investit. La momentul evalurii controlului sunt Juate Tn caleul i
drepturile de vot potentiale sau convertibile care sunt exercitabile la momentul respectiv.

Situatiite financiare ale filialelor sunt incluse ™ situatiile financiare consolidate din momentul In care Tncepe exercitarea
controlulul si pna In momentul incet3irii acestula. Politiclle contabile ale fillalelor sunt aliniate cy cele ale SIF Imobiliare

Detinere Detinere
Hilale SIF Imobiliare PLC  SIF Imoblilare PLC Locatie BvB
La 31,12.2020 La 31.122019
Bistrifa SA 91.98% 91.98% Cluj Napoca
Comalim SA 91.17% 91.17% Arad AeRO
Cora SA 96.33% 83.86% Hunedeara
Uniteh SA 50.20% 50.20% Timiscara AeRD
SIFl BH Est SA 04.77% 94.77% Oradea
SIFI BH Ind Vest SA 98.95% 68.95% Oradea
SIFI BH Retall SA 89.90% 90.90% Oradea
SIFI Baia Mare SA 92.59% 92.59% Baia Mare
SIF! B One 5A 90.79% 90.79% Bucuresti
SIFl C] Storage SA 92.10% 92.10% Cluj Napoca AeRO
SIFI C] Logistic SA 84.74% 84.74% Cluj Napoca AeRO
SIF Cluj Retall SA 96.36% 96.36% Cluj Napoca AeRO
SIFI ¢} Office SA 96.83% 98.83% Bucuresti
SIFI CJ Agro SA 97.50% 87.50% Turda
SIFl Properties SA 99.90% 99.90% Bucuresti
SIFl Sighet 5A 72.28% 72.28% Sighetu Marmatiel

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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ANALIZA ACTIVITATII

Analiza generala

Grupul SIF Imoebiliare PLC 5i desféisoard activitatea pe piata Imobiliard din Romania, detinand active in marile orage din
vestul trii, precumn Cluj, Timisoara, Arad, Oradea, 5i in Bucuresti.

Contextul economic intern

Dupi o contracjie de 12,2% Tn al doilea trimestru al anului trecut, economia Romaniel a revenlt cu 5,8% th 2020-T3, in
principal datoritd recuperdrii consumulul privat. Performanta puternicd a sectorulul constructiilor a sustinut cresterea
formarii brute de capital fix pe tot parcursul anului. Tntre timp, exporturile nete au continuat s& contribuie negativ la
cresterea economicd n 2020, chiar daca sl-au revenit oarecum mai repede decat importurile din trimestrul trei. Productia
industriald a compensat unele dintre pierderile sale anterioare Tn al doilea si al treilea trimestru al anului 2020, dar aceast3
perfarmantd pozitivi pare s3 se opreasc) la inceputul ultimului trimestru. Masurile de sprijin fiscal, dintre care unele au
fost prelungite pana la miflocul anului 2021, au atenuat impactul crizef asupra economiei in 2020. Rata somajului a rimas
n Jur de 5%, ca urmare a méasurilor guvernamentale care au amortizat lovitura pe piata muncii.

Se estimeaz3 cd PIB-ul real va creste cu 3,8% Tn 2021 si cu 4% Tn 2022. Se asteaptd o recuperare a consumului privat
puternicincepénd cu a doua jumétate a anulut 2021, decarece lansarea vaccindrilor ar trebul séd permita o ridicare treptats
a restrictiilor. Se preconizeaz# c& consumul va rdméne robust in 2022, Investitille vor réméne solide peste orlzontul
prognozat, sustinut de sectorul constructiilor. Se asteaptd ca exporturile s3 isi revind Tn contextul condftillor economice
Tmbundtatite ale principalilor parteneri comerciali ai Romaniei.

Cu toate ca deficitul cash s-a situat n anul 2020 la 9,8% din PIB, agentiile de rating pastreaza perspectiva Romaniei
«Negativ’, féra a modifica hsd nivelul de rating la “JUNK”". Cel mai probabil acest lucru a avut Tn vedere atat impactul crizei
sanitare asupra economiel edt sl mésurlle asumate de Romania pentru reduceresa deflcitulul Tn perioada urméatoare.

Meneda autohtond In raport cu moneda euro a avut variatii moderate, rezultdnd un curs anual mediu de 4,8371 RON/EUR
n 2020 fats de 4,7452 RON/EUR Tn 2019 (4,6535 RON/EUR in 20178).

Ratele dobanzilor practicate de BNR au scizut Th anul 2020, dobénda de politicd monetard ajungind la 1,25%/an la
nceputul anulul 2021, far ratele dobanzii la facilititile de depozit 5l de credit la 0,75%, respectiv 1,75%/an.

Investitille nete realizate in economia natlonald au crescut in 2020 cu 0,1%, comparativ cu anul 2019, conform dateior
provizoril publicate de Institutul National de Statisticd. Cresterlle provin in principal din sectorul construdiilor.

Declansarea pandemiei Covid 19 n luna martie 2020 constitule evenimentul cu potential impact semnificativ asupra
evolufiei societatll si fn anul 2021, tn conditiile decretéril starii de alertd Tn Romanfa sl impuneril unor masur] restrictive
pentru anumite ramuri de activitate din economie. Anul 2021 are potential de a fi anul revirimentului economic, insi acest
lucru depinde de numerosi factori (e.g., campania de vaccinare). Societatea monitorizeazd situafla concrets, elaborand

propriile masurl in vederea parcurgerii aceastei perioade dificile.

Tn aceast moment, conducerea considers c& impactul financiar asupra operatiunilor este greu de anticipat, in conditille
care evenimentele sunt ntr-o evolutie imprevizibild de la o zi Ia aita.

Analiza portofollului

Strategia investifionald a SIF imobtifare PLC urmareste maximizarea performantelor portofoliului In vederea cresterii
valoril activelor administrate gl a veniturilor din investiil. Astfel, Societatea are ca obiectiv administrarea eficientd a unui
portofoliu diversificat de active de calitate in scopul cresterll valorii pentru acjionari si obtinerea unor randamente cit mai

ridicate ale capitalului investit.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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Analiza generalj

Abordarea individuallzaté adoptata de Societate pentru fiecare dintre participatiile sale urmareste valorificarea unul
randament agregat, generat din castiguri sub forma dividendelor ct si din castigurl de capital.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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Informatii privind entitatile incluse in consolidare

UNITEH S.A.

Tnfiingats i 1966, sub denumirea | M.T.L..F. Banat, este
denumita utterior S.U.G.T.C. - Statla de Utilaj Greu pentru
Transporturl si Constructil (1977).Tn 1991 devine socletate
comerciald sub denumirea de UNITEH S.A.

Obiect de activitate: Inchirierea 51 subinchirierea
bunuriior imaobiliare praprii sau inchiriate.
Actionariat:  SIF IMORBILIARE PLC (50,20%) cu 219.043 actiuni
si alfi actlenari {49,80%) cu 217.317 actiuni.

Capital social: 1.090.900 RGN.

Valoare nominala: 2,5 RON/actiune,

Prin  Hot3rérea Adunéril Generale Extraordinare a

Actionarilor SIFl UNITEH S.A. din data de 28.07.2020 s-a aprobat
dizovlarea voluntard a Societstil 5| deschiderea procedurii dizolvérii gi
lichidarii.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI BH EST S.A.

Infiintare: Incepand cu anil ‘50, socletatea a fost cunoscut sub
denumirea de BJATM (Baza Judeteani de Aprovizionare Tehnico-
Materiald) iar dupa anii "90 s-a produs reorganizarea conform Legii
3171999 5i a altor acte normative, noua societate preluand activul si
pasivul BJ.A.T.M., Clu).

Obiect de activitate: Inchirierea si subinchirlerea bunurilor imobiliare
propril sau inchiriate,

Actlonariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (94.77%) cu 497.584 acjluni si alti
actlonar (5.23%} cu 27.479 acfiuni.

Capital soclal: 1.312.658 RON;
Valoare nominals; 2,5 RON/actlune.

Socletatea a fost infiintata in anul 1991 prin preluarea patrimonlului
fostei Intreprinderi de Stat Legume sl Fructe Bihor. De |2 aceasts data
SIFl BH EST SA. functioneazi ca o socletate pe actiuni, avand
patrimeniu propriu. Societatea sl realizeazi cifra de afaceri aproape
in totalitate din activitatea de inchiriere a activelor din patrimoniu
(depozite, birourl, spatii comerciale, spatli frigotehnice),

Socletatea define in proprietate o platforms compusé din 7 hale st o
cladire de birouri, cu un total de 29 de spali de depozitare. Sunt
definute 5l alte doud terenuri, ambele situate in judetul Bihor.
Suprafata totald disponibild pentru inchirlere este de 13.684 m2
dintre care 6.100 m? sunt depozite.

In 2020, veniturile din chirii au crescut cu 7.39% faya de anul 2079.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI BH IND VEST S.A,

Inflintata in 1995, prin divizarea societétii MECORD S.A. ORADEA

Oblect de actitate: Fabricarea de constructii metalice §i part
componente ale structurilor metalice si Tnchirierea sl subinchirierea
bunurllor imobiliare proprii sau Tnchiriate.

Actlonariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (58,95%) cu 2.732.B58 actiunt si alti
actionari {1,05%) cu 29.117 actluni

Capltal sodal: 2.761.975 RON

Valoare nominala: * RON/ acliune

Societatea a fost Infiintats In 1995 prin divizare din MECORD S.A. Oradea
(fosta IMPS Cradea),

Societatea define un teren In suprafatd de 53.098 m2, din care suprafata
construitd la sol este de 20.503 m? Imobilizérile corporale reprezints
circa 99,95% din totalul imobilizérilor.

Spatiul destinat Tnchirieril este reprezentat in prindpal de 6 hale
industriafe (14.038 m?) si de 3.490 me platforme.

1n 2020, veniturile din chirll au crescut cu 12.95% fata de anul 2019.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI CJ LOGISTIC S.A.

Tnfilmare: Tncepand cu anil ‘50, societatea a fost cunoscuts sub
denumirea de BJA.T.M. (Baza Judeteand de Aprovizionare Tehnico-
Materiald) iar dupa anli ‘90 s-a produs reorganizarea conform Legli
3171990 si a altor acte normative, noua socletate preiudnd activul si
pasivul BJATM, Cluj.

Obiect de activitate: Intermediert in comertul cu produse diverse si
nchirierea si subinchirlerea bunurilor imobliiare proprii sau Inchiriate,

Acflonariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (84,74%) cu 835.345 actiuni si alfi
actionar! (15,26%) cu 150.388 actiuni,

Capital social: 2.454.333 RON
Valoare nominalg: 2,5 RON/actiune.

Tnainte de anii '90 societatea a fost cunoscutd sub denumirile de
BJAT.M, activitatea flind desfisuratd incepand cu anil 50, Dup3 anii
90 reorganizarea s-a produs conform Legii 31/90 si a altor acte
normative, noua societate preluénd activul §l pasivut BJLAT.M. Cluf.

Socletatea are Tn patrimoniu active situate pe dous amplasamente in
Cluj Napoca, cu o suprafat¥ totali a terenurlor de 116.598 m2,
Suprafata totaid @ constructiilor este de 58,296 m2 doar 42,667 m2flind

inchiriabili,

Veniturile din chiril Tn 2020 au crescut cu 4.69% fats de 2019,

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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>|Fl CJ STORAGE S.A.

Tnflintare: Societatea a fost fondatd Tn anul 1949, jar din anul 1990 este
societate pe acfiuni

Obiect de activitate: Tnchirierea 5 subinchirierea bunurilor Imobiliare
propril sau inchiriate

Actionariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (92,10%) cu 409.980 actiuni si alfi actionari
{7.9 %) cu 35.172 actiuni

Capital soclal: 1.112.880 lel

Valoare nominald: 2,5 RON/actiune.

Societates a fost fondata In anul 1949, far din anul 1990 este socletate pe
actiunl, Activitatea principald a societétii este fnchirierea de spatii de tip

depozit.

Tn componenta activelor principale definute, se regiisesc terenuri si cladiri.
Terenul este localizat in Cluj Napoca {11.096 m?3) iar cladirile aflate in
patrimoniu sunt reprezentate in proportie de 8% de depozite situate in
Cluj Napoca (16,183 m?) .

in anul 2020, veniturfle din chirii au inregistrat o crestere de 5.56%
comparativ cu anuf 2019,

RAPORTUL SiF IMOBILJARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL ANANCIAR 2020
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Infilntatsi n 1991, n baza Legii nr. 15/1990, prin preluarea integrald a
patrimoniului fostei Intreprinderi de Comert, cu Ridicata a M&rfurilor
Alimentare Arad. Tn 2008, socletatea a fuzionat cu RESAPARE S|
REPARARE ANVELOPE 5.A,, iar dupd trei ani s-a produs fuzionarea cu
societatea COMBI SPEDITION 5.A.

Obiect de activitate: Comert cu ridicata al c3mnii sl produselor din
carne si Inchirierea §i subinchirlerea bunuriior imabiliare proprii sau
Tnchiriate,

Actionariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (91,17%) cu 1,148,927 actiuni §i altl
actionari (8,839%) cu 111.255 actiuni,

Capital soclal: 3.150.455 RON.

Valoare nominald: 2,5 RON/actiune.

COMALIM 5A a fost Inflintaté th anul 1991 in baza Legii nr.15/1990,
prin preluarea integrald a patrimoniului fostei Tntreprinderi de
Comert cu Ridicata a Marfurilor Alimentare Arad. Tn lanuarie 2008,
Societatea a fuzionat cu Regapare §l Reparare Anvelope SA, societate
absorbitd, tar 3 anl mal tarziu a fuzlionat cu Combl Spedition SA, de
asemenea, socletate absorbité. De aici a rezultat un congiomerat de
active rdspandite fn Arad, Oradea, Timisoara sl Bucuresti.

Ponderea principald n cifra de afaceri este reprezentaty de
Tnchirierea si subinchlirierea spatilior proprii.

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chirii au inregistrat o crestere de 5.30%
comparativ cu anul anterior.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI CLUJ RETAIL S.A.

InflinatX In 1991, Socletatea este succesoarea ICSAP Cluj
(Intreprinderea Comercials de Stat de Alimentatie Public).
Oblect de activitate: Tnchirlerea sl subinchirierea bunurilor imobilfiare

propril sau Inchiriate.

Actionariat: 5IF IMOBILIARE PLC (96.36%] cu 26.263.863 actiunl §i aiti
actfonari (3.64%) cu 990.996 actiuni.

Capital sodial: 2.725.486 RON

Valoare nominald: 0,1 RON/actiune.

La data infiinjrii Societatea desfisura activitea de allmentatie publics
Tn 163 unitétl amenajate Tn spatiile proprll, Inchirlate sau folosite in
reclprocitate cu alte socletati. In baza hotérérii AGEA din 10.11.2014,
obiectul principal de activitate se schimbd din cod CAEN 5610 -
Restaurante, in cod CAEN 6820 ~ Tnchirieri si subinchirierea bunurilor

imabiliare propril.

Tn 1998 are loc o divizare tn B societati pe actiuni cu actionar majoritar
SIF Banat-Crisana. Pana la finalul celui de-al treilea trimestru fn 2013,
socletatea a avut in administrare directd 1,327 m2, constand ntr-un
restaurant, un laborator de cofetdrie-patiserie si 4 cofetsrii,

Tncepand cu noiembrie 2013, Consiliul de Administratie a aprobat
renuntarea la activitatea proprie - productle {laborator, cofetarie si
restaurant). Tn prezent, Cluj Retail are ca obiect de activitate principal
Jnchirierea si subtnchirierea bunurllor imoblliare™.

Societatea define 17 amplasamente situate tn Clu) Napoca a céror
suprafaté totald este de aproape 19.561 m2,

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chirii au inregistrat o crestere de 3.96%
comparativ cu anul anterior

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL AINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI BH RETAIL S.A.

Infiintare; Societatea a fost Infiintatd in anul 2014, desfisurandu-si
activitatea in Oradea, jud. Bihor.

Obiect de activitate: Inchirierea si subinchirierea bunurilor Imobiliare
propril sau Inchiriate.

Actionariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (99.9%) cu 35.964 actiuni si
Administrare Imobiliare S.A. {0,1%) cu 36 actiuni.

Capital soclal: 90.000 RON
Valoare nominald: 2.5 RON/actiune.

Societatea a fost infilntatd in anul 2014, avand ca obiect principal de
activitate inchirierea si subinchirierea bunurilor imobiliare proprit sau

inchlriate.

Tn martie 2016 au fost vandute doua active din municipiul Oradea, in
suprafatd de aproximativ 200 m2, iar la sfarsitul anului 2017,
societatea detine active care se desfasoara pe o suprafat utits de
11.513m2.

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chiril au inregistrat o scidere de 1.64%
comparativ cu anul anterfor. Societatea a achlzitionat tn anul 2020 un
teren in Bucuregti in suprafaté de Sha.

RAPORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL AINANCIAR 2020
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SIFl BAIA MARE S.A.
e Trfiintaté in iunie 2001 prin divizarea COMDINAMIC SA, Baia Mare.

Oblect de activitate: inchirierea si subinchirierea spatfilor comerciale din
patrimoniu.

Actionariat: SIF IMDBILIARE PLC (92,53%) cu 271,332 actiuni si alti actionari
(7,41%) cu 21.713 actiuni.

Capital social: 732.613 RON

Valoare nominald: 2,5 RON/ac}iune

Societatea a fost Inflintats in 2001, prin divizare din COMDINAMIC SA, Baia
Mare {fosta M.C.B. SA), urménd sa treacd printr-un proces de fuziune prin
absorbtle cu 5C Informin SA Bala Mare, in 2007.

in prezent aceasts Tsi realizeaz cifra de afaceri exclusiv din activitatea de
inchiriere a spatiilor comerciale din patrimaniu,

Societatea define o suprafatd inchiriablla de 3.577 m2 Activele sunt
situate Tn Bala Mare sl Bala Sprie cu o suprafats de 3,282 m? Impdrtite Tn
7 amplasamente §l un actlvin Cavnic cu o suprafats de 236 m2, Gradul de
ocupare a fost de 89% la sfarsiul anulul 2018,

Th anul 2026, venlturlle din chirll au inreglstrat o scidere cu 2,79%
comparativ cu anul 2019,

RAFORTUL SIF IMOBILIARE PLC PENTRU EXERCITIUL FINANCIAR 2020
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SIFI SIGHET S.A.

Inflingare: Tn 1991, prin transformarea ICS Mérfuri Industriale Tn
societate pe actiuni.

Oblect de activitate: Inchirierea si subinchirierea bunurilor imobiliare
propril sau inchirlate,

Actionariat: 5IF IMOBILIARE PLC (72,28%) cu 85.765 actiuni sl alji
actionari (27,72%) <u 32.889 actiuni.

Capital sodal: 296.635 RON,
Valoare nominald: 2,5 RON/actiune.

Societatea a fost Tnflintata T anul 1991, prin transformarea ICS
Mérfurl Industriale Tn sodetate pe actiuni avnd ca obiect de
activitate comerful cu amanuntul al marfurilor industriale.

Tn anul 1999 societatea este preluats de citre SIF Banat Crisana SA.
Obiectul actual de activitate al socletdtii este tnchirlerea si
subinchirierea bunurilor imobiliare proprii sau Inchiriate.

Societatea detine In patrimoniu 9 spatil situate tn Sighetu Marmatiei,
fiind reprezentate Tn proportie de 92% de spatii comerciale 5i depozite.

Suprafata totald construltd este de 5.506 mZ, cu o suprafatd disponlibild
pentru inchiriere de 5229 m? De asemenea, Sighet SA are in
proprietate terenuri Tn suprafati totald de 7.949 m2,

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chiril au Inregistrat o crestere de 9.90%
comparativ cu anul anterior,
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CORAS.A.

Infiintare; Societatea a fost fondat# in anul 1991 ca socletate pe actiuni
judeful Hunedoara.

Oblect de activitate: Tnchirierea sl subinchirierea bunurilor imobiliare
proprii sau inchirlate.

Actlonariat: SIFIMOBILIARE PLC (96,33%) cu 101.934 actiuni si alfi actionar
{3.67%) cu 3.887 actiuni.

Capltal soclal: 264.553 RON.

Valoare nominald: 2,5 RON/actiune.

Incepand cu 01 iulie 2017 Cora a absorbit societatea Central Petrosani
S.A,, suprafata inchiriabila crescand de ia 3.084 m? la 5.612 m?. Spatiile
comerclale si birourile sunt situate Tn Municipiu! Hunedoara, comuna
Ghelari sl comuna Teliuc §i tn Petrogani.

Suprafata disponibila pentru inchiriere este de 4.372 m?.

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chirii au inregistrat o crestere de 1.46%
comparativ cu anul anterior.
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BISTRITA S.A.

Tnfilngats In 1998, In urma divizéril societitii Arta Culinara SA (actual
Cluj Retail SA),

Oblect de activitate: Inchirierea si subinchirierea bunurilor
Imoblliare proprii sau inchiriate.

Actionariat: SIF IMOBILIARE PLC {91,98%) cu B49.408 actiuni 5l alfi
actionari (8,02%) cu 74.084 actiuni.

Capital social: 92.349 RON.
Valoare nominald: 0,1 RON/actiune.

Socletatea s-a nfiintat Tn anul 1998, Th urma divizérii soctetatii
comerciale Arté Culinard SA (actual Cluj Retall SA). Societatea isi
reallzeaz3 cifra de afacerl exclusiv din activitatea de inchiriere a
spatiitor comerciale din patrimoniu.

Societatea are i patrimoniu un singur activ {(S+P+E), integrat Intr-
un bloc de locuinte, in cartierul Marasti, Cluj, compus din mal multe
spatii comerciale, cu o suprafatd desfasurata de 900 m?.

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chirll au inregistrat o crestere de 1.14 %
comparativ cu anul anterior.
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SIFl CJ OFFICE S.A.

Societatea s-a Infiinfat In 1998, sub denumirea de Complex Laboratoare SA, Tn urma divizaril societdtil comerciale
Arta Culinara SA (actual SIFI Cluj Retail SA}). Societatea isi realizeazs cifra de afaceri exclusiv din activitatea de

Tnchiriere a spatillor comerciale din patrimoniL.

SIF Imobiliare PLC detine 98,83% (39.813.758 actiuni) din acilunile Socletstil 51 altl actionari diferenta de 1,17%
(473.270 actiuni). Valoarea capitalulul social al Societatil este 4.028.703 lei, divizat Tn 40.287.028 actiuni cu o

valoare nominald de 0,1 lei/acfiune.

Tn anul 2020, veniturile din chirli au Tnregistrat o scidere de 21,72 % comparativ cu anul anterior.

Societatea intentioneazéd dezvoltarea unui proiect imobiliar tn Cluj.

SIH PROPERTIES S.A.

Societatea a fost infiinfatd in anul 2016, avénd ca obiect principal de activitate dezvoltare {promovare)
imobifiara,

Capitalul social al 5IF Properties $.A. 1a 31 decembrie 2018 este n valoarea de 120.000 RON fiind divizat in 48.060
actiuni cu valoarea nominala de 2,5 RON.

SIF imoblliare PLC este actionarul principal, detindnd 99.9% din actiunile Societatii (47.952 actiuni), iar al{i actionarl
defin diferenta de 0.1%, reprezenténd 48 actiuni.

SIFi B ONE S.A.

Societatea a fast Infiintatd n anul 2014, avénd ca obiect principal de activitate fnchirierea i subinchirierea
bunurilor Imobillare propril sau tnchiriate,

Capitalul social al SIF! B ONE 5.A, la 31 decembrie 2018 este fn valoarea de 559.070 RON fiind divizat Th 223.628
actiuni cu valoarea nominald de 2,5 RON.

SIF Imobiliare PLC este actionarul principal, detindnd 90.79% din actiunile Societdsil (203,026 aciiuni), iar alti
acfionari detin diferenfa de 9.21%, reprezentand 20.602 actiuni.
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SIFI CJ AGRO S.A.

Societatea, nfiintatd Tn anul 1996, are ca si obiect principal de
activitate contractarea, achizitionarea §t preluarea de Ila
producatorii agricoli de cereale, leguminoase boabe si seminte
oleaginoase, pastrarea, conditionarea st comercializarea acestors,
comer; cu Tngrésdminte chimice, seminte, pesticide, motoring,
prestéri servicii si fabricarea produselor de morarit.

ﬂ

-

SIF Imobiliare PLC detine 97.50% (1.944.392 actiunl) din actiunile
Societatii, iar alti acHonari detin diferenta de 2.50% (49.769 actiuni)
din actiuni. Capitalul sodial al soclet#iil este de 4.985.403 RON,
impérfit in 1.994.1617 agiunl, cu o valoare nominalid de 25
tel/actiune. Tn anul 2016 s-au anulat un numir de 259.425 actiunl
sau reducerea capitalului social.

Societatea detine o bazd de receptie tn Turda, cu o capacitate de
depozitare de 18.000 tone sl un teren fn suprafatd de 64.106 m2,
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ANALIZA ACTIVITATII

OBIECTIVE PENTRU ANUL 2021

Obiectivele Sacietatii constau Tn imbundtatirea calitdtii portofoliului prin proiecte investitionale de perspectiva si
diversificarea/restructurarea acestula in vederea atingerii parametrilor financlart urmarigl, Astfel, Socletatea 15! propune
sé contfinue administrarea eficlerts a portofoliuiul i maximizarea performantelor acestuia, precum sl anaiiza sl

identificarea cportunititilor investitionale.

Tntr-o piat3 cu o concurents Insemnaté si intr-un context economic volatll, péistrarea si atragerea dientilor devine un punct
cheie pentru mentinerea activitatil la un nivel optim. In acest sens, se Intentioneazi continuarea principalelor obiective
aferente anului 2020 5iin anul 2021, sl anume:

Cresterea gradului de ocupare a spatillor detinute
Gestionarea precautd a fluxurllor de numerar si reducerea costurilor operationale Ja nivelul filialelor
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PRINCIPALELE RISCURI $I INCERTITUDIN!

MANAGEMENTUL RISCULU!

Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC ntelege existenta riscurilor aferente operafiunilor curente, precum $i a celor care pot aparea
din urmérirea obiectivelor strategice. In acest context, s-au adoptat i aplicat politici de management al riscurilor prin care
se realizeazd o gestiune adecvatd a acestora, precum si proceduri specifice proactive de identificare, evaluare,
monitorizare §i control a riscurilor, care s ofere confortul necesar din perspectiva Tndepiinirii oblectivelor.

Fluctuatia valorii proprietatilor §i fluctuatia cereril pentru proprietatea Tnchiriats, volatilitatea chirfilor de pe piat3 sau
gradul mare de neocupare sunt principalele riscuri potentiale carora li se acord3 o atentie deosebita,

RISCUL DE CREDIT

Riscul de credit reprezintd vulnerabilitate legats de probabilitatea ca o parte contractuals si nu 15l poatd onora obligatiile
asumate Tn limitele termenilor agreatl, fiind definits de 3 caracteristici fundamentale; expunerea, probabilitatea de a nu

fi onorate obligatiile si rata de recuperare (in cazul evenimentului de risc).

RISCUL DE DOBANDA

Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC este expus la riscul de rat4 a dobanzii, Riscul de ratd a dobnzil reprezintd probabilitatea de a
suferl o plerdere sau o nerealizare a profiturilor prognozate, datorits variatiei ratel dobanzii pe piatd Intr-un sens

nefavorabil,

RISCUL VALUTAR

Riscul valutar este riscul Inregistraril unor plerderi sau nerealizarii profitului estimat ca urmare a fluctuatiilor nefavarabile
ale cursului de schimb.

RISCUL DE LICHIDITATE

Lichiditatea reprezintd capacitatea unuli activ de a fi transformat In bani f5r plerderea valorii sale. Astfel, un activ este cu
atat mal lichid, cu cit poate fi mai usor si mai repede transformat in banl cash.

Riscul de lichiditate este decl asociat detinerii de active reale sau financiare, iar evaluarea efectelor lui presupune
estimarea reduceril valorii de piatd a acestor active, atunci cand vinzarea lor imedlat# este necesara sau inevitabili pentru
obtinerea de cash In cel mai scurt timp.

Riscul de lichiditate aferent obligatiilor de plat¥ este riscul ca Grupul SIF Imobliiare PLC s& intdmpine dificultati in

ndepiinirea obligatillor care decurg din datoriile financiare pe termen scurt, care se sting prin plata ' numerar sau prin
alte mijloace financiare, sau c& asemenea obligatii sa fie stinse Tntr-0 manierd nefavorabils.

Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC monitorizeaz3 sistematic profilu! de lichiditate al portofolluli, avand in vedere contributia
marginald a fiecirui activ care poate avea un Impact semnificativ asupra lichiditéti, precum si pasivele sl angajamentefe
semnificative, contingente sau de altd naturd, pe care Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC le poate avea Tn raport cu cbligatiile sale,

RISCUL OPERATIONAL

Riscul operational este riscul inregistrérii de pierderi directe sau indirecte rezultate din carente sau deficiente ale
procedurilor, personalului, sisternelor interne ale Grupului SIF Imobiliare PLC sau din evenimente externe ce pot avea un

impact asupra operatiunilor acesteia.
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Tn scopul evaludrii nivelulul de risc operational Tn activitatea curents, un pas important i reprezinta identificarea si
incadrarea evenimentelor de risc operational Tn categoril specifice care s3 permits stabilirea celor mai eficlente metode

de control sl diminuare a efectelor potentlale.

Societatea utilizeazs ca instrument de analizé si administrare a risculul operational autoevaluarea. Autoevaluarea este un
proces initiat, pfanificat si executat de c3tre fiecare filiala in parte,

RISCUL REPUTATIONAL

Riseul reputatlonal reprezintd riscul actual sau viitor de afectare negativé a profiturflor §i capitaluiul determinat de
perceptia nefavorabild asupra imaginii unej companii de citre clienti, contrapartide, actlonari, investitori sau autorititi de

supraveghere,

Din perspectiva managementului riscurilor, riscul reputational poate fi impartit n doud clase Importante: (i) convingerea
¢d Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC T5i pot si Ti va indeplinl premisiunile faté de contrapartide si creditor; (i) convingerea ¢3
Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC Ts] desfésoard afacerile Tn mod corect sl urmeazé practicile etice,

RISCLUL STRATEGIC

Riscul strategic reprezintd riscul actual sau viitor de afectare negativd a profiturilor sl a valorii activului portofoliului
Grupului SIF Imobillare PLC, provenind din implementarea unor decizii de management inadecvate, din implementarea
necorespunzétoare a decizlilor de management sau din lipsa reactiel la schimbarile mediulul de afaceri,

RISCUL DE REGLEMENTARE

Riscul de reglementare este riscul tnregistrérii unei pierderi din cauza neaplicarii sau aplicirii defectuoase a prevederilor
iegale sl/sau contractuale sifsau din cauza cadrului contractual necorespunzater sau insuficientd reglementare.

Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC trebuie s& respecte o gamd larga de legi sl reglementén - impuse sau reglementéri specifice
sectorulul de activitate, Riscul de reglementare este necontrolabil 5i necuantificabil prin faptul cd nu se poate anticipa
evenimentul declansator s nici nivelul impactului. Impactul se poate referi la reducerea atractivitstii unui anumit tip de
investiii, cresterea semnificativd a cesturilor In activitate, etc. Din punct de vedere calitativ, diminuarea riscului de
reglementare se va realiza prin adaptarea politicilor, normelor st procedurilor la modificérile aparute si prin reducerea

sau cresterea nivelului unor activitéfi acolo unde este cazui.

Tn timp ce riscul de conformitate poate fi monitorizat $i recunoscut, riscurile Juridice sunt uneor! greu de anticipat.
Riscurile legate de conformare sunt considerate ca fiind componente ale cadrului de management al riscurlior.

RISCUL DE IMPOZITARE

Riscul aferent Impozitarii - nterpretarea textalor $i implementarea practicé a procedurilor noilor reglementari fiscale
aplicabile armonizate cu legislatfa europeand, ar putea varla de la entitate la entitate si existd riscul ca n anumite situatii

autoritétile fiscale s& adopte o pozifie diferitd faid de cea a Grupului.

Tn plus, Guvernul Romaniei define un numér de agentii autorizate s3 efectueze auditul (controlul) companlilor care
opereaza pe teritoriul Roméniei. Aceste controale sunt similare audituriior fiscale din alte {3iri, §i pot acoperi nu numai
aspecte fiscale, dar si alte aspecte legale 5i regulatorii care prezint3 interes pentru aceste agentii. Este posibll ca Grupul
SIF Imobiliare PLC sa fie supus controalelor fiscale pe mésura emiterii unor noi reglementért fiscale, deci riscul fiscal

trebuie considerat atent.
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RISLLIL MPENCIN] VICLIULAA LIE AFALERY

Riscul aferent mediului de afaceri reprezinis riscul actual sau viitor de afectare negativa a profiturilor §f a capitalului, ca
urmare a unor evolutli nefavorabile ale principalelor variabile macroeconomice sau ale oricsror variabile care constitule
tinte ale pollticii economnice a ¢4ril, Grupul SIF Imobiliare PLC adopta mésurile necesare pentru sustenabilitatea si
dezvoltarea afacerii in conditiile existente pe piata din Romania, prin monitorizarea constants a parametrilor si
indicatorilor relevanti sl adecvarea corespunzitoare a politicilor Investifionale,

RISCUL IMOBILIAR

Piata imobiliara din Romania a fost afectat3 de volatilitatea pietelor financiare ce a rezultat in restrangerea accesului la
credite pentrut companil. Ca urmare, valoarea contabili a activelor imobiliare evaluate la valoarea justs a fost actualizat
pentru a reflecta conditiile pietel. Totusi, Tn anumite cazuri, absenta de date relevante referitoare la piat4 poate determina

Societatea s Isi modifice metodologlile de evaluare.
RISCUL DE PRODUCTIE

Riscul de productie agricol este in strans¥ legaturs cu riscul meteoralogic, riscul comercial dar i cel uman. Acest sector
necesita o abordare specifics, crearea unui mediu propice pentru o platd atipica sl imprevizibila.
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RISCURI SI SUSTENABILITATE

RAPORT DE SUSTENABILITATE

Conceptul de dezvoltare durablis sau sustenabilitate cunoagte o Jargi utilizare si este definit ca un model de dezvoltare
care urmireste dezvoitarea $l satisfacerea nevollor prezente, fir4 a compromite Ins3 posibllit3tile viitoare de dezvoltare.

Grupul urméreste s& dezvolte activitati care s5 respecte principiile de dezvoltare durabii prin realizarea unor operatiuni
sustenabile, precum:

) reducerea consumului resurselor neregenerabile pentru sedlile de birouri sl incurajarea angajatilor s4 fie responsabiti
cu mediul Tnconjuritor.

li) economisirea de resurse financiare pentru a fi alocate altor cheltuieli importante. Aceste economli permit acoperirea
altor necesitdt], cum ar fi de exemplu salariile angajatilor, beneficii legate de sinitate dar si investitii in dezvoltarea

societatil;
iii) mentinerea unui mediu social i de munc sigur si sénétos;

In realizarea obiectivelor sale financiare, socletatea ncearc sa minimizeze impactul! negatlv asupra mediului social, dar
§i a celui inconjurétor, prin aplicarea acestor practicl pe termen lung.
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GUVERNANTA CORPORATIVA
ADMINISTRAREA S| CONDUCEREA SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Consiliul de Administratie

Tn conformitate cu prevederile actului constitutiv Societatea este administraté de un Consiliv de Administratie, avand tre
membri. La 31.12,2020 componenta acestuia este:

¢ Dna, Androula Saxiate

*  Dna. Chrystalla Mina
*  Administrare Imobiliare S.A. (prin reprezentant permanent Valentin Tic-Chiilment)

Componenta Consiliulul de Administratle nu a suferit modificiri in timpul exercifiviul financiar 2020,

Adminisirator Functie Alteinformatii
Dna. Androula Saxiate Administrator Studfl - Colegiu
(1981} Experients

Secretar companl {2013 ~ prezent)
Dna. Chrystalla Mina Administrator Studii - Uceu
{1976} Experientd

Administrator companii (2013 - prezent)
Administrare imobillare 5.A. (sodetate de | Valentin Tic-Chilimeant {1966) Studil
drept  romin, pe  acfiuni J4Ov | Director General/Presedinte al Conslliului | Licents tn Drept;
140/8567/2013, CUI 20519450, cu sedful Tn de Administratie al Administrare Imobiliare Licent$ n Electronics s Telecomunicati;
Bucurest, Sector 2, Serghel Vasflevid | 5.A. din Martie 2018 Experients (selectie)
Rahmaninov 4648, oblect de activitate 2018 - 1996 consultant /manager/partener
constand Tn activitsii de consultants pentru In diverse firme de servidi profesionale
afacert 5| management) prin reprezentant (e.g. Big 4), In tard si in striindtate;
permanent (la data de 31,12.2018) Valentin 1994-1991 - consultant Agentia Romana de
Tie-Chlliment Dezvoltare

Tn eursul anului 2020 Consiliul de Administratie s-a intrunit in 26 sedinte.

Participare administratori la capitalul sodlal al Socletati]

*  Dna, Androula Saxiate ~ nu define actlunl Ia capitalul soclal al Societsii
= Dna. Chrystalla Mina - nu detine actiuni la capitalul social al Societapi
*  Administrare Imobiliare S.A. - detine 1 actiune la capitalul socfal al Societatli

Din informatiile detinute de Societate, pentru administrator! nu se cunosc acordurl, nfelegeri sau legdturi de familie intre
persoana respectivd §i o altd persoand datorit¥ careia persoana respectivd a fost numitd in aceasts calitate.

Administratorii nu au fost implicati n litigii sau proceduri administrative,
Administratorii nu sunt remunerati,

Conducerea executivy

Societatea nu are conducere executiva,

Politica de dividend
Societatea Tsi propune s3 distribuie dividende, intrucat toate pierderile din anii precedenti au fost acoperite.

Participatii ale filialelor In capitalul social al Societti
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ANALIZA FINANCIARA INDIVIDUALA

ANALIZA SITUATIILOR FINANCIARE INDIVIDUALE

SITUATIA PROFITULUI SAU PIERDERII SI ALTE VENITURI GENERALE
31 decembrie 2020

2020 2019 2018 2017
€ € € €
Venituri din dividende 3,726,673 1,489,564 1,206,886 1.056.038
Venitdin dobinzl (fmprumuturf) 523,509 276166 157063 __ . 122943
Profi brut 4,250,182 1,765,730 1,363,949 1.178.981
Chettuieli administrative (60.989) {54.682) (76.722)
Alte cheltuiell (74.492) . {1.407335)
Profit{plerdere) operationala 4,175,590 7,743,887 1,309,267 (305.076)
Costurl de finanjare nete (110.986) _ (116371) (6,287 (30,373
(Pierdere) / Profit Tnainte de impozitare 4,064,704 7627516 1,302,980 {335.449)
Impozit pe profit 91,997) [47.056) {46,557) ) {15.576)
Profit/ {piendere) net3 pentru anul vizat 3,972,707 7580460 1,256,423 (351.025)
Alte veniturf generale
Veniturl generale totale anul vizat — 3572707 7,580,460 1256423 ___ (351075
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SITUATIA POZITIEI FINANCIARE

31 decembrie 2020

ACTIVE

Active Imobllizate
Investitil (participatii) In fillale
Imprumuturi pe termen lung

Active drculante

Creante

Creante din imprumuturi

Investitil financlare la valoare justa
Impozite de recuperat

Numerar Tn banci

Active totale
CAPITALURI PROPRII §1 DATORN

Capitalurl propril

Capftal social

Prime de capital
Casiguri/{plerderl} acumulate

Capltaluri propril totale
Datori! curente

Alte datoril
Datoril privind impozitul curent

Capitaluri propril ! datorli

18,974,771
— 17740555

715

6,414,248
169,404
6,939

— 2905808
— 9496439

——46211.765

4.495.974
31.037.928

— 10627012
—46,164914

46,851

— 86211765

2019

18,974,771

— ABG74771

20,965,430
169.404
5,713

— 2113479
- 23250026

—22,228,707

4,499,974
31,037,928

— 6654305
—— 42,192,207

- 36590

=

SIF IMOBILIARE
2018 2017
€ €
18,985,625 19.155.029
10,307,699 1245486
— 289293324 20400515
259 330
4,683,196 11.161.053

169.404

G4 4315
— 501539 1824856
5355342 _ 12990554
—3648.666 _._ 33391069
4,499,974 4.499.974
31,037,928 31.037.928
{926.155) (2,182.578)
34611747 33355324
— 36919 35.744
36919 35744
——3464B666 ___ 33391060
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ANALIZA SITUATIILOR FINANCIARE INDIVIDUALE

SITUATIA MODIFICARILOR DE CAPITALURI PROPRII

31 decembrie 2020

Bilant la 1 fanwarie 2019

Venit total

Profit net pantru anu! curent

Bllant la 31 decembrie 2619/ 1 lanuarie 2020
Venit total

Profit net pentru anul curent

Bllant la data de 31 decembrie 2020

Capital soclal Prime de capital Plerderi acumulate Total
€ € € €

4,454,974 31,037,928 (929,155) 34,611,747
4,499.974 31,037,928 6,654,305 42,192,207

- 3,972,707 3972707
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ANALIZA SITUATILOR FINANCIARE INDIVIDUALE
SITUATIA FLUXURILOR DE NUMERAR
31 decembrie 2020
2020 2019 2018 mz
€ € € €
FLUXUR! DE NUMERAR DIN ACTMVITAT! DE EXPLOATARE
Profit / (plerdere) Thainte de impozitare 4,064,704 7.627.516 1,302,980 (335.449)
Ajustari pentru:
Diferente de curs valutar nereallzate 106,714 91,255 7,986
Amortizare software 596
Depreclere - irwvestitii i filiale 311.247
Profit dinvanzarea participatiilor (6,039,146}
Venituri din dividende (3.726,673) {1.489,564) (1,206,886) {1.056.038)
Venlturl din dobanzi (imprumuturi) (523,509) (276,166) {157.063) (122,974)
Veniturl din dobénzl {depozite bancare} (16,478)
Plerderi din fuziunea filialelor — 1.0%6.088
(95.242) (86,105) {52,983) {106.530)
ModificSri ale capitalulul de lueru:
Reducere creante - 259 il (45)
(Reducerea)/cresterea altor sume de piats - (2.581)
Numerar folosit in operatiuni (84,981) {86,175) {51,736} (109.156)
Dividende primite 3,695,365 1,489,564 1,206,886 1.056.038
Dobanzi depozite bancare 13,841
Impozit platit — (58277 (51.823) . = (43386) _ {17.524)

Nurmnerar net (folositygenerat In activitifl de exploatare — 3564948 1351564 1,111,364 _ 0929358

FLUXURI DE NUMERAR DIN ACTMITAT] DE INVESTITII

Plata pentru achizitie software {596}
Plata pentru achizitla de participatil

Imprumutur! acordate {2,911,791) {15,499,785) (2.435,281)

Rambursdri de fmprumuturi acordate 139,172 9,710,161 428.725
Venlturi din viinzarea participatiilor 6,050,000

Dobénzi fncasate

Numerar net generat din/{folosit In) activitdii de investigil —(2772619) 260376 .  {2435281) _ __ 42R160

FLUXURI DE NUMERAR DIN ACTMITAT] DE FINANTARE

Incasare capital social 409,113
Debanda achitata

Numerar siet folosit Tn activitsti de finantare —_ 409113
{Schderea)/crestare netd a numerarulul gl echivalent numerar 792,329 1,611,940 (1,323317) 1.766.631

Numerar sl echivalent numerar la inceputul anului 2,113,479 501539 1824856

Numerar gi echivalentul numerarulul la sfargitul anulyi
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EVENIMENTE ULTERIOARE BILANTULU!

Nu este cazul,

ASPECTE LEGATE DE ANGAJATI

Societatea SIF imobiliare PLC nu are personal angajat.

Tn cadrul SIF IMOBILIARE PLC si a entit3ilor incluse in consolidare nu funciioneazp organizatii sindicaie. Raporturile de
muncéa sunt reglementate prin contracte individuale de munca.

SIF IMOBILIARE PLC sl entitatile incluse ™n consolidare tncurajeazs dialogul social § asigurd un mediu de lucru pozitiv,
oferind sanse egale tuturor angajatilor.

Pe parcursul anului 2020 nu au fost Tnregistrate elemente conflictuale T raporturile dintre conducere si angajati; de
asemenea, nu au avut loc concedlerl colective.

ASPECTE LEGATE DE MEDIU

Grupul 5IF IMOBILIARE PLC nu are o politics sau procedurd integrats de guvernantd privind mediul fnconjurator, insd
acoperd aspectele relevante in acest domeniu.

Cu toate ci activitatea specific a Grupului nu are un impact negativ asupra mediulul inconjurator, Grupul este preocupat
de utilizarea de proceduri de bun& administrare a problemelor de mediu in derularea proceselor ce tin de activitatea

ZiInicé, resursele fiind folosite eficient cu asigurarea protectiei mediului.

LiTIGH

Socletatea SIF Imobiliare PLC nu a fost implicat# Tn litigh in cursul exercitiului financiar 2020,
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DECLARATIA APLICI SAU EXPLICI

Prevederile Codulul Respectd Nu respectsi sau Motivul pentru neconformitate
respect parjial

Al. Societatea trebule s¥ detiha wn Partlal Este Tn curs de intocmire regulamentul
regulament intern al Consiliului care & intern al Consiliului te Administratie
includé termenl de referint3 cu privire la actualizat cu termenii de referints
Conslliu 5t la funciiile de conducere cheie ale prevazufi de Cad. In actul constitutiv al
societdti, Administrarea conflictului de societd{li existd prevederi privind
interese la nivelul Consiliulul trebule, de activitatea CA.
asemenea, s fie tratat n regulamentul
Consliiului.
A.2, Orice alte angajamente profesionale ala X

membrilor Consiliviui, inclusiv pozifla de
membru executiv sau neexecutiv al
Consiliului i alte societsti (axduzind filiale
2le socletdtii) si Institugii non-prefit, vor fi
aduse la cunogtingd Consiliului Thainte de
numire 5! pe perivada mandatului.

A3, Flecare membru al Consiliuly wva X
informa Consillul cu privire |a orice legatura
cu un actionar care detine direct sau indirect
actluni reprezentiind nu mal putin de 5% din
numarul total de drepturl de vot. Aceast
obligaile are Tn vedere orice fel de legaturl
care poate afecta pozifia membrulul
respectiv pe aspecte ce tin de decizll ale
Constliufui.

A4, Raportul anual trebuie s informeze Parflal
dac3 a avut loc o evaluare a Consiliului, sub
conducerea presedintelul. Trebule =i
contind, de asemenea, numirul de sedinte
ale Consiliulul.

AS5. Procedura privind cooperarea cu X
Consuiltantul Autorizat pentru perioada Tn
care aceastd cooperare este Impusi de
Bursa de Valori Bucuresti

B.1. Consiliul va adopta o polltici astfel fncat X
orice tranzactie a sodietifi cu o filial¥
reprezenténd 5% sau mai muit din activele
nete ale societdtil, conform celel mal recente
raportiii financlare, si fie aprobatd de
Consfliu.

B.2, Auditul intem trebule sZ fie realizat de X
Cétre o structurd organizatoricd separat3
(departamentul de audit Intern) din cadrul
soclettli sau prin servicille unel terge parg
independente, care va raporta Consiliului,
lar, In cadrul societdtl), Ti va raporta direct
Directorulul General.

C.1. Socletatea va publica in raportul anual o X
secfiune care va indude veniturile totale ale
membrilor Consfliului $i ale directoruivl
general aferente anulul financlar respectiv si
valoarea totals a tuturor bonusurilor sau a
oricBror compensalii variabile si, de
asemenes, ipotezele cheie si principiile

Raportul anual conjine mentionarea
numarului de sedinte CA 5i se are in
vedere implementarea evaluirii
anuale a Consfliului

n curs de Implementare.
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pentru calcularea veniturilor mentionate
mafj sus.
D1, Suplimentar fafd de Informatille Partlal Socletatea define o pagin¥ de Internet
previzute Tn prevederile legale, pagina de unde sunt prezentate in limba romana
Internet a societdtii va contine o secliune informatille relevante pentru
dedicatd Relatiei cu Investitorfi, atatin limba investitori in cadru sectiunii denumit
romand cét §i In limba englezl, cu toate “PENTRU INVESTITORI™; Sectiunea
informatiile relevante de Interes pentru urmeaza ss fie actualizats cu aceste
investitorl, incluzind: informatil 5i I limba engleza.
D.1.1. Principalele regulamente  ale X Informatiile vor i prezentate pe site-ul
socletétli, in particular actul constitutiv gl sodetatil care este Tn curs de
regulamentele Inteme ale organelor actualizare.
statutare
D12, CVurile membrilor organelor X Informatiile vor fi prezentate pe site-ul
statutare societdtil care este in curs de
actualizare.
D.1.3. Rapoartele curente §l rapoartele X Informatlile vor fi prezentate pe site-ul
periodice societfil care este in curs de
actuallzare.
D.1.4. informatit cu privire la adundrile Partial Informatiile fn limba romé&n3 sunt
generale ale actlonarilor: ordinez de zi §i disponlbiie pe pagina de internet a
materlalele aferente; hotirarile adundrilor societditll. Se are in vedere publicarea
| generale acestora sl in limba englezs.
D.1.5. Informatll cu privire la evenimente Partial Informatlle in limba rom&n# sunt
corporative precumn plata dividendelor sau disponibile pe pagina de Internet a
alte evenimente care au ca rezuhat societitll. Se are in vedere publicarea
obtinerea sau limltdri cu privire la drepturile acestora 51 fn limba englezi.
unui actionar, induzand termenele limit3 gi
principiile unor astfel de operatiuni
D.1.6. Ale Informatii de naturd X Se va implementa Tn cursul anului
extraordinard care ar trebul ficute publice: 2020,
anularea/ modificarea/ infflerea cooperarii
cu un Consultant Autorlzat: semnarea/
reinnolrea/ terminarea unui acord cu un
Market Maker
D.1.7. Socletatea trebule s5 aib3 o functle de Pariial Societatea a desemnat o persoani
Relatii cu Investitorii §1 s& includd T pentru Relatll cu Investitorii, ale c3ref
sectiunea dedicats acestei functll, pe pagina date de contact urmeaz a fiincluse pe
de Internet & socletifll, numele sl datele de pagina de internet, care este i curs de
contact ale unel persoane care are actualizare.
capacitatea de a furniza, la cerere,
informatille corespunzéitoare
B.2, O societate trebule s aib3 adoptats o Partial Consiliul de administratle a adoptat
politics de dividend a societitil, ca un set de politica de dividend, aceasta urm&nd
directil referitoare la repartizarea profitulul 58 fie publicats pe pagina de internet a
net, pe care sodetatea declard ¢ o va societstii care este it curs de
respecta. Principlile politicii de dividend actualizare,
trebule si fle publicate pe pagiha de
internet a socletitll.
D3, O societate trebuie s& aibi adoptata o Partial Consiliul de administratie a adoptat
politicd cu privire la prognoze sl dacy politica cu privire la prognoze, aceasta
acestea vor fi fumnizate sau nu. Prognozele urmand si fie publicats pe pagina de
reprezintd concluzile cuantificate ale internet a societdtll care este Tn curs de
studiifor care vizeazd determinaraa actualizare.
Impactulul total sl unel liste de factor]
referitari la o pericadd viitcare (asa-
numitele Ipoteze). Poiitica trebuie s
prevadd frecvenia, perioada avuts In vedere
st continutul prognozelor. Prognozele, daci
sunt publicate, vor fi parte a rapoartelor
anuale, semestriale sau trimestriale. Politica
cu privire la prognoze trebuie si fie
ublicatd pe pagina de internet a societél.



=

RAPORT
ANUAL i
SIF IMOBILIARE

D.4. O societate trebule s3 stabileascd data X
51 locul unei aduniri generale astfel incat s&
permitd participarea unuf numar c8t mai
mare de actlonari,

D.5. Rapoartele financiare vor Include Partial
informatii atdt in rom&né cat sitn englezs, cu
privire la principalil factori care influenteazs
schimb&r! la nivelul vanzarilor, profitului
operationai, profitului net sau orice alt
Indicator financlar relevant.

D6. Societatea va organiza cel pufin o X
intéinire/ conferingi telefonicd cu anallst! si
investitori, in flecare an, informaiille
prezentate cu aceste ocazil vor fi publicate tn
sectlunea Relatii cu Investitoril de pe pagina
de inmernet a socletdtii, la momentul
respectivel Intéinirl/ conferinte telefonice.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Board of Directors presents its report and audited consolidated finandial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, the "Group™) for the year ended 31 Dacember 2020,

Principal activities and nature of oparations of the Group
The principal activities of the Group, which are unchanged from last year, is the ownership, exploitation,

management and trading of real estate property located in Romanla.

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 include the subsidiary companles of the
Company that are property owners, all incorporated in Romania, that is:

1. COMALIM SA

2. SIFI BH EST SA

3. SIFICLU] RETAIL SA
4, SIF Q) LOGISTIC SA
5. SIFIC1AGRO SA

6. SIFI C1 STORAGE SA
7. UNITEH SA

8. SIFI BH IND VEST S5A
9. BISTRITA CLU2 SA
20. SIFI CJ OFFICE SA
11. CORA SA

12. SIFI BAIA MARE SA
13. SIFI SIGHET SA

14. SIFI B ONE SA

15. SIFI BH RETAIL SA
16. SIFI PROPERTIES SA

Out of 16 subsidiary companies mentioned above, 5 are currently listed on Bucharest Stock Exchange on Bucharest
Stock Exchange’s AeRO market: Comalim SA, SIFI Chy Retail SA, SIFT CJ Logistic SA, SIFI CJ Storage SA and Uniteh

Review of current position, future developments and performance of the Group's business
The Group's development to date, financlal results and pesition as presented in the consolidated financial statements

are considered satlsfactory.

Results
The Group's resuits for the year are set out on page 9.

Dividends
The Company’s Directors propose the foltowing:

1. Part of the profit for year 2020, respectively, €3,955,977.12 to be distributed as dividends (0.88 €/share).
2. Part of the profit for year 2019, respectively, €6,614,961.78 corresponding to year 2019 to be distributed as
dividends (1.47 €/share).

Share capital
There were no changes in the share capital of the Company during the year under review.

Board of Directors
The members of the Group's Board of Directors as at 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report are presented

on page 1. All of them were members of the Board of Directors throughout the year ended 31 Decernber 2020.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Assoclation all Directors presently members of the Board continue In
office.

There were no significant changes in the assignment of responsibllities and remuneration of the Board of Directors.




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Events after the reporting period
Any significant events that occurred after the end of the reporting period are descaribed In note 28 to the consolidated

financlal statements.

Independent Auditors
The Independent Auditors, Evoserve Auditors Limited, have expressed thedr willingness to continue in office and a
resolution giving authority to the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration will ba proposed at the Annual General

Meeting.

Nicpsfa, 7Aprill£121
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of SIF Imobiliare PLC

Report on the Audit of tha Consolidatad Financial Statements

Opinton

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIF Imobiliare PLC (the *Company™ and Its subsidiarfes

(together with the Company, the “Group™), which are presented in pages 9 to 31 which comprise the consolidated
statement of Ananclal position as at 31 December 2020, and the consofidated statements of profit or loss and other
oomprehensive Inoome, changes In equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the finandal

statements, Induding a summary of significant accounting polides.

In our opinfon, the accompanying consolidated financial staternents give a true and falr view of the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial perfermance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unlon and the

requirements of the Cyprus Companles Law, Cap. 113.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit In accordance with Intemnational Standards on Auditing {ISAS). Our responsibiities under
those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are Independent of the Group in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board
far Accountants' Code of Fthics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the finandal statements in Cyprus, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsiblities n accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We belleve that the evidence we have

ohtalned Is sufficlent and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financlal statements of the cument period. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the
finandial statements as @ whole, and In forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF Imobiliare PLC

l Key audIt matter

How owr audil addressed the key audit mattor

The Group holds Investment properties at the total
value of Euro 64,278,378 as at 31 December 2020
which represents approximately 75,48% of the total
assets of the Group. The Group's investmant properties
are held to earn rentals and are located in Romania.

The fair value of lnvestment property Is datermined by
using valuation techniques. The Management uses Its

{ judgement to select a varlety of methods and make
gssumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date, Indicators of
the assessment of the falr value of the investment
properties Incksde such items as declines In revenues,
eamings or cash flows or material adverse changes In
the economic or political stability, which may Indicate

In addition, management obtalhs valuation reports for
the Ivestment properties held from extarnal
independent valuators.

The Investment; properties are stated at its falr value at
the reporting date and we conslder the valuation of the
Investment properties as a key audit matter due to
thelr significance on the consolidated statement of
finandial position and because the determination of the
fair values Involves slanificant judgment and
estimation.

Other information

that the camrying amount of ah agset Is not recoverable.

Vethtafien oo smvstmient proprsrties i fater 1o Mete 14 L Hhe Finsncial stataments,)

Our audit procedures incduded the following:

Obtained and Inspected the valuation reports |
prepared by the external property valuer
engaged by the Group

Evaluated the Independent external valuer
competencs, capabilides and objectivity

Bvaluzted the valuation methedology used by
the external property valuer based on our
knowledge of other property valuers for
simlfar types of properties

Based on the results of our audlt procedures we have
cbtained reasonable assurance in regard to the
valuation of the investment properties,

—— —— e —

The Board of Directors Is responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises the Information
induded in the management report, but dees not Include the finandial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the finandal statements does not cover the other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF Imobiliare PLC

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibllity 1s to read the other Information and, In
doing so, conskder whether the other Information is materially inconsistent with the financlal statements or our
knowledge cbtained In the audit or otherwise eppears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there Is @ material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.
Responsibllities of the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financlal statements that give a true and
falr view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopean Unlon and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such intemnal control as the Board of Directors
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated finandial statements, the Board of Directors Is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as & golng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Beard of Directors elther Intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,
The Board of Directors Is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Qur objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance zbout whether the financlal statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exlsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud ar ervor and
are consklered material if, individuslly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basls of these finandial statements.

As part of an sudlt In accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintaln professional
skepticlsm throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obain audit evidence that is
sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnion. The Hsk of not detecting a matertal
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve
collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of Internal control relavant to the audit in order to design audit procadures that
are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss
of the Group's Internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of acoounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Board of Direchors,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going cancern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncetizinty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures In the financial statements or, if such disdosures are inadequate, ko madify our epinion.
Our concluslons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

6
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF Imobiliare PLC

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In a
manner that achleves a true and fair view,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audlt and significant audit findings, induding any significant deficlendies In internal control that we identify during

our audlt.

From the matters communicatad with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters were of most significance
in the audit of the finandal statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters In our auditor's report unfess law or regulation predudes public disdosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumskances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelght the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Lagal Requirements

Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors Laws of 2017, we report the following:

. In our opinion, the management report, has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Cyprus Companles Law, Cap 113, and the Information given Is consishent with the consolidated finandal
statements.

. In our opinlon, and In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Rs environment
obtzained In the course of the audit, we have not identified materal misstatements in the management

report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF Imobiliare PLC

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In
accordance with Section 69 of the Auditors Laws of 2017 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving this opinion,
accept or assume responsibllity for any other purpase or to any other person to whose knowledge this report may

come to.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this Independent auditor’s report is Constantinos Montis.

Constantiros Montls, BSc ACA

Certifled Public Accountant and Registered Auditor

for and an behalf of

Evoserve Auditors Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

Nicosia, 7 April 2021




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2020

Fair value gain on investment propesty
General and administration expenses

Groas profit/{loss)
Other operating income
Other expenses
Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before tax

Tax
Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive ncome

Other comprehensive Income for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Net profit for the year attributable to:
Efjuity helders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year atiributable to:

Enuity holders of the parent
Nen-controlling interests

Note
6

11
11

2020 2019

€ €

5486,728 6,284,759
5,675,074 544,338
(2,758,878 __ (8,162,897)
8,402,924  (1,333,795)

- 6,449,942

(54,032) -
8,348,892 5,116,147
345,029 636,153
(754.714) _ (1.135.159)
7,939,207 4,617,141
—(987,903) (1,335420)
—6:951,304 3,281,712
(2,054,162) _ (13,042.844)
—{2,054,162) {13,042,844)
4,897,142 (9.761,132)
6,292,588 3,096,976
658,716 184,736

= $051,308 3281712
4,433,081  (8,926,106)
— 464,061 (835026)
4,897,142 _ (9,761.132)

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2020

Non-currant assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Non-current loans receivable

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recelvables

Loans recelvable

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retalned eamings

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferved tax llabilities

Current llabilitles
Trade and other payabfes
Bomowings

Total liabllities
Total equity and liabllities

Note

13
14

15

21

22
23

2020 2019

€ €

430,032 371,974

64,278,378 41,095,097

3,880 5,486
—3:167,977 -

67,880,267 41,472,557

17,609 63,741
716,260 18,509,911

1,564,849  2,383613
5,607,397  4,725927

— 8972604 13189342
—16:878,719 _38687),534

— 404,000 -
— 65,162,086 __ 80,345,001

4499974 4,499,974
31,037,928 31,037,928
113,891 3,213,329
35,554,325 28 854,882
71,206,118 67,606,113

2,950,902 1,653,765
—74:157,020 69,259,878

2,350,849 4,316,550
— 54329990 _ 4.919.560
7,783,848 9,236 510

3,217,344 1,561,224
4,774 287,479

3,222,118 1,848,703
11,005966 _ 11,085.213
85,162,986 80,345,001

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

On 7 April 2021 the Board of Directors of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC authorised these consolidated financdial statements for
Issue,

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
11
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note € €
7,939,207 4,617,141

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 51,309 66,237
Unrealised exchange (profit)/loss (352,508) 15,082
Profit from the sale of investments in subskdiaries - {1,122,204)
- {5,228,909)

Profit from the sale of investment properties
Fair value losses/{gains) on finandal assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Fair value profit on fhvestment property

54,032 (98,829)
(5,675,074)  (554,338)
- (262,780)

Impalrment charge
Interest income 11 (345,029) {636,153)
Interest expense 11 709,959 1,120,078
Other non monetary items (170,476) (26,626}
2,211,420 (2,111,301)
Decrease in Inventories 46,132 11,374
Decrease/{increase) In trade and other receivables 17,793,651 (14,281,696)
Increase in finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss (881,470} (2,565,316)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 1,656,120 86
Cash generated from/(used In) oparations 20,825,853 (19,816,745)
Interest received 104,357 99,195
Interest paid (60,457) (311,181)
Tax paid —. (145446) __ (1,100,535)
Net cash generated from/(used In) operating activities 20,724,307 __ (21,129,267)
(4,853)

Payment for purchase of Intangible assets -
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (72,103) (79,227)
Payment for purchase of investment property 14 (18,783,248) (143,630)

Payment for purchase of finandal assets at falr value through profit and loss - (1,804,071)
Loans granted {1,500,000) (10,582,843)
Loans repayments received - 9,710,160
Payment for purchase of other investments - (1,803,436)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 38,100 205,410
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 14 - 5,178,304
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiary undertakings - 1,133,058
Interest recetved 104,357 636,153
Exchange differences-investment properties - {1,130,225)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities 20,21 1,314,800
Repayments of borrowings (2,248,406) (641,065)
Proceeds from borrowings - 15,499,785
Unrealised exchange {loss) - {467,648)
Interest paid (709,959)  (1,120,078)
Dividends paid Z -

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
13




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2020

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net decreasa in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2020 2019
Note € €
{4,728,151) 13270994

(4,216,738)  (6,543,473)
13,189,342 19732815
19 8,972,604 . 13,189.34)

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

14




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

1. Incorporation and principal activities

Country of incorporation

SIF Imoblllare PLC (the ‘Company'} and its subsidiaries (together, the 'Group’) are engaged in the ownership,
exploitation, management and trading of real estate property located in Romania.

The Company was incorporated in Cyprus on 18 July 2013 as a private limibed llabllity company under the Cyprus
Companies Law, Cap. 113, Its registered office Is at 30 Karpenisiou Street, CY-1077 Nicosia, Cyprus.

Principal activities

The principal activitles of the Group, which are unchanged from last year, is the ownership, exploltation,
management and trading of real estate property located in Romania.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compiiance _
These consolidated financlal statements have been prepared in acoordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Uinion (EU) and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law,
Cap.113,

{b) Basis of measurement
The principat accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated finandial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently appied to all years presented in these consolidated financial statements
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated finandial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except In the case of
land, buildings and equipment, investment property, available-for-sale finandal assets, and financial assets and

financial liablifies at fair value through profit or loss.

(c) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires from management the exercise of

Judgment, to make estimates and assumptions that influence the appiication of acoounting principles and the related
amounts of assets and liabliities, income and expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are deemed to be reasonable based on knowledge avallable at

that time. Actual results may deviate from such estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revised on a continuous basis. Revisions in acoounting estimates are
recognised In the pericd during which the estimate is revised, If the estimate affects only that period, or in the period

of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects the present as well as future pericds.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
acoounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the consolidated finandal

statements are desaribed below:

] Fair value of investment property
The fair value of Investment property is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its

judgment to select a varlety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date, The fair value of the investrnent property has been estimated based on the

fair value of the particular Investment properties held.

. Fair value of financial assets
The fair value of finandlal instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using

valuation techniques. The Group uses Its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

15




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

2. Basls of preparation (continued)

(d) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro (€) which is the presentation currency of the Group.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and requires Management to exercise its judgment In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. It also requires the use of assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and Kabilities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on Management's best
knowiedge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

3. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been oonsistently applied to all years presented In these consolidated finandal statements
unless atherwise stated.

Bmals of consolidation
The Group consolidated finandial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent company SIF Imobfiiare

Pic and the financlal statements of the following subsidlaries:

1 COMALIM SA

SIFI BH EST SA
3  SIFI CLUJRETAIL SA
4 SIFI Q) LOGISTIC SA
5 SIFI CJAGRO SA
6  SIFI C] STORAGE SA
7  UNITEH 5A
8  SIFI BH IND VEST SA
9 BISTRITACLUISA
10 SIFI O OFFICE SA
11 CORASA

12  SIFI BAIA MARE S5A
13 SIF SIGHET SA

14 SIFI B ONE SA

15 SIFI BH RETAIL SA
16 SIFI PROPERTIES SA

Subsidiaries are entitles controfled by the Group. Control exists where the Group has the power to govemn the
financlal and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Acquisition of entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that

cortrols the Group are acoounted for as an acqulsition at the date when the business combination has occurred. The
assets and liabilities are recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously In the Group controlling
sharehalder's financial statements. The difference between the carrying values of the Group's share of the identifiable
net assets and the consideration paid Is recorded, In equity as a reserve on acquisition from entities under common

control.

Changes in the Group’s ownership Interests In existing subsidiarles

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are acoounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in thair relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controfling Interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and atiributed to owners of the Company.

16




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policles {continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or foss on disposal is calcufated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration recelved and the fair value of any retained Interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidlary and any non-controfling
interests, When assets of the subsidiary are camied at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company had
directly disposed of the relevant assets (l.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained eamings as
specified by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair vaiue on Initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 or, when
applicable, the cost on Inltal recognition of an investment in an assoclate or a jointly controlled entity.

The finandial statements of subsidiaries aoquired or disposed of during the year are induded in the oconsofidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date that contro! commences untll the date
control ceases, Intra-group balances, and any unrealised Income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions

are eliminated in praparing consofidated financial stetements.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thelr acoounting policies
into line with those used by ather members of the Group.

Revenue recognition
Revenues eamed by the Group are recognised on the following bases:

a Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accruals basis In accordance with the substance of the refevant

agreements,

. Rendering of services
Sales of services are recognised In the accounting period in which the services are renc »ed by reference to

completion of the spedific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of
the total services to be provided.

» Sale of products
Sales of goods are recognised when significant risis and rewards of ownership of the goods have been

transferred to the customer, which is usually when the Company has sold or delivered goods to the
customer, the customer has accepted the goods and collectability of the related receivable is reasonably

assured,

Finance income
Finance Incormne includes interest income which is recognised based on an accrual basls,

Finance expenses
Interest expense and other borrowing costs are recognised to profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Forelgn currency translation

. Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Company's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary

economic ervironment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”). The finandal statements are
presented In Euro (€), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Items incfuded in the subsidiaries finandial staternents are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency”). The financlal statements are
presented in Romanian Lei (LEI), which Is the subsidiaries’ functional and presentation currency. The
financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been translated in Euro {€), for consolidation

purposes.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Slgnificant accounting polldes (continued)
The financial statements of the Group are presented In Euro {€), which is the Group's presentation currency.

. Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the setement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabllitles

denominated In foraign currendes are recognised in profit or loss,

The assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign operations (induding comparatives) are expressed in Euro
using exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Income and expense items (Induding comparatives)
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that perlod, In which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, If any, are dassified as equity and transferred to the Company's translation reserve. Such
transiation differences are recognised in profit or ioss in the period in which the foreign operation Is disposed

off. ‘

Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Tax llabilities and assets for the current and prior perfods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date. Current tax Includes any adjustments to tax payable In respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax Is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Currently enacted tax rates

are used in the determination of deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and llabifities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and bulldings are carried at fair value, based on valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent
deprediation for buildings. Revaluations are carried out with suffident regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materally from that which would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. All other property,

plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of proparty, plant and equipment are credited to cther
comprehensive Income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged agalnst that reserve;
all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carying amount of the asset (the depredation charged to profit or loss) and depredation based on the asset's
original oost is transferred from fair value reserves to retained eamings.

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost Includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capltalised In accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting polidies (continue)

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method over the useful lives of each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment. The annual deprediation rates used for the current and comparative periods are as

follows:

%

Plant and machinery 5-33.33
Buildings 2-5
Furniture, fbdtures and office equipment 10
6.67 - 33.33

Tangible assets - cost
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date.

Where the carrylng amount of an asset Is greater than its estimated recoverabie amount, the asset [s written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Bxpenditure for repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment s charged to profit or loss of the year In
which It Is incurred. The cost of major renovations and other subsequent expenditure are Included in the carmying
amount of the asset when it is prabable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assassed standard of
performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group. Major renovations are depreciated over the remalning useful

iife of the related asset,

An Rtem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment Is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the camrying

amount of the asset and Is recognised in profit or loss,

Investment properties
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capltal appreciation, is stated at Its falr vaiue at

the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise,

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property Is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the aarrying
amount of the asset) Is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property Is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Costs that are directly associated with |dentifiable and unique computer software products controlled by the Group

and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year are recognised as intanglble
assets, Subsequently computer software is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumuiated
Impaimment losses, Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programs beyond
their original specifications Is recognised as a capital Improvement and added to the ofiginal cost of the computer
software. Costs assoclated with maintenance of computer software programs are recognised as an expense when
incurred. Computer software costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful Iives, not exceeding
a period of three years. Amortisation commences when the computer software Is available for use and is included

within administrative expenses,
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or

disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised In profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies {(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Nonr-current assets and disposal groups are dassified as held for sale If thelr carrying amount will be recovered
through 2 sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condtion is regarded as met only when the sale
is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is avallable for immediate safe In Its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a compieted sale
within one year from the date of dassification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and fiabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retzin a non-controfling interest in its former subsidiaty after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as heid for sale are measured at the lower of the assets previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,

Financial assets

Financial assets - Classification

The Group classifies its finandal assets in the following measurement categories:
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The dlassification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: (f) the Group's business mode!
for managing the related assets portfolio and (if} the cash flow characteristics of the asset. On initlal recognition, the
Group may Irrevocably designate a debt financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that

would ctherwise arise.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, the classification will depend on whether the
Group has made an irmevocable efection at the time of initial recognition o account for the equity Investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT). This election Is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Al ather financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will efther be recorded in profit or loss or OCI, For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive Income (FYOCT).

Financlal assets - Measurement

At Inttial recognition, the Group measures a finandal asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financlal asset not at
falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of finandal assets carried at FVTPL are expensed In profit or loss. Fair value at
inftial recognftion is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gein or loss on Initial recognition Is only recorded I
there is a difference between fair vajue and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current
market transactions in the same Instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from

observable markets.

Financlal assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of ptincipal and Interest.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Finandal asgets {contihued)

Financlal assets -Reclassification

Financlal instruments are redassified only when the business model for managing those assets changes, The
redassification has a prospective effect and takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the

change,

Financial assets - write-off

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Group exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
conciuded that there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The write-off represents a derecognition event. The
Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity when the Group seeks to recover
amounts that are contractually due, however, there Is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Flnancial assets - modification

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual terms of the financlal assets. The Group
assesses whether the modification of contractual cash flows Is substantial considering, among cther, the following
factors: any new contractual terms that substantially affect the risk profile of the asset (e.g. profit share or equity-
hased retum), significant change In interest rate, change in the currency denomination, new collateral or credit
enhancement that significantly affects the credit risk assodated with the asset or a significant extension of a loan

when the borrower Is not in finandal difficuities,

If the modified terms are substantially different, the rights to cash flows from the original asset explre and the Group
derecognises the original financlal asset and recognises a new asset at its falr value. The date of renegotiation Is
consldered to be the date of initial recognition for subsequent impalrment calculation purposes, including determining
whether a SICR has occurred. The Group also assesses whether the new loan or debt Instrument meets the SPPI
criterion. Any difference between the carrying amount of the original asset derecognised and falr value of the new
substantially modified asset is recognised In profit or loss, unless the substance of the difference is attributed to a

capital transaction with owners.

In 2 situation where the renegotiation was driven by financial difficulties of the counterparty and Inability to make the
originally agreed payments, the Group compares the original and revised expected cash flows to assets whether the
risks and rewards of the asset are substantially different as a result of the contractual modification. If the risks and
rewards do not change, the modified asset is not substantially different from the original asset and the modification
does not result in derecognition. The Group recaiculates the gross carrying amount by discounting the modified
contractual cash flows by the original effective interest rate, and recognises a modification gain or foss in proflt or

loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank. Cash and
cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost because: (j) they are heid for collection of contractual cash flows and
those cash flows represent SPPI, and (ii) they are not designated at FVTPL.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded inltially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest methed.
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3. Significant acoounting policies {continued)
Finandal assets (continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined using the welghted
average method. Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs
to completion and selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade recelvables are amounts due from customers for goods soid or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or In the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. Trade recelvables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss

allowance.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is uncenditional unless they contaln
significant financing components, in which case they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade recefvables are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9.The Group applies the IFRS 9 simpiified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade recsivables,
See nate 5, Credit risk section.

Trade recelvables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery Include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 180 days past due.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful fife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impalrment whenever events or changes in
drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher
of an asset's falr value fess costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impaimment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash Rows (cash-generating units).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are cassified as equity. The difference between the fair value of the conslderation received by the
Company and the nominal value of the share capltal being issued [s taken to the share premium account.

Non-current liabifities
Non-current liabllitles represent amounts that are due more than twelve months from the reporting date.
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4. New accounting pronouncements

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, standards and interpretations were issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board which were not yet effective. Some of them were adopted by the
European Union and others not yet. The Board of Directors expects that the adoption of these accounting standards
in future periods will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial stataments of the Group,

5. Finandial risk management

Financial risk factors
The Group is exposed to market price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and currency risk arising from
the finandial instruments it holds. The risk management polides employed by the Group to manage these risks are

discussed below:

5.1 Market price risk
Market price risk Is the risk that the value of finandial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes In market

prices. The Group's financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the
investments. The Group's market price risk is managed through diverslification of the investment portfolio,

5.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk Is the risk that the value of finandial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest

rates. The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market Interest rates
as the Group has no significant Interest-bearing assets. The Group s exposed to Interest rate risk in relation to its
non-current borrowings. Borrowlings issued at variable rates expase the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk, The Company's Management
monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts accordingly.

5.3 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financlal Instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to

meet an obligation. Credit risk arises from [cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt Investments

carried at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), favourable derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, induding outstanding receivables and contract assets.

5.4 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and liabflities dozs not match. An unmatched position

potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses. The Group has procedures with the object
of minimising such losses such as maintaining sufficient cash and other highly liquid current assets and by having
available an adequate amount of committed credit facilities,

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for Its finandal liabfiiles. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financlal liabilities based on the earllest date on which the Group

can be required to pay. The table includes bath interest and principal cash fiows.
Carrying amounts

€
Bank loans 2,355,623
Trade and other payables 3,217,344

5,572,967

31 December 2019 Carrying amounts
€

Bank loans 4,604,029
Trade and other payables 1,561,224

5165253
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Year ended 31 December 2020

5. Financial risk management (continued)
5.5 Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes In foreign exchange
rates. Currency risk arises when future commerdal transactions and recognised assets and fiabllfties are denominated
In a currency that Is not the Group's measurement currency. The Group's Management monltors the exchange rate

fluctuations on & continuous basis and acts accordingly.

6. Revenue

Rental income
Other operating revenue

7. General and administration expenses

Raw matertals and consumables used
Stalf costs {Note 10)

Water supply and cleaning

Licenses and taxes

Other expenses

Professional and other related expenses
Adjustment for impairment of current assets
Travelling and entertalnment expenses
Audlitor's remuneration

Rent payable

Repalrs and maintenance

Letting costs

Depreciation

8. Other operating income

Profit from sale of investments in subsidiaries

Profit from sales of investment properties
Falr value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2020 2019

€ €
5,142,885 5,128,971
— 343,843 1155788
— 486,728 6,284,750
2020 2019

€ €

99,697 568,393
722,193 784,309
36,703 82,707
353,740 390,293
9,206 4,806,075
980,906 917,084
391,085 262,780
4,900 15,775
17,850 17,850
47,534 54,226
14,059 14,907
29,606 182,256
51,309 66,937
2758878 ___ 8162892
2020 2019

€ €

- 1,122,204

- 5,228,909

- 98,829

- 6,445,942
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9. Other expenses

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

10. Staff costs

Salaries
Secial security costs

Average number of employees

11. Finance income/(costs)

Interest income
Finance income

Net forelgn exchange losses
Interest expense

Finance costs

Net finance costs

12. Tax

Corporation tax

The applicable tax rate in Cyprus is 12.5% and in Romanla is 16%.

2020 2019

€ €
% _
2020 2019

€ €

665,605 737,783
36588 46,526
722,193 784,309

80 105

2020 2019

€ €
——345.029 636,153
345,029 36,153
(44,755) (15,081)

9, —(1,120,078)
{754,714) __(1,135150)
{409,685) __  (499,006)
2020 2019

€ €

987,903 1335420
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plantand Fumiture, Tanglble assets Total
buiidings machinery factures and
office
equipment
€ € € € €
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2019 19,723,475 2,018,362 206,179 636,402 22,584,418
Additions 4,890 6,807 10,463 57,067 79,227
Disposals - (174,118) (6,173) (25119)  (205,410)
Adjustment on revaluation (12,929) . . - {12,929)
Inflation adjustments - (441) (125) - (566)
Exchange differences 989 (2,697) 2,035 (5,093) (4,766)
Disposals from disposals of
subsidiaries (17,071,100} (647,128} {5,924) - (17,724,152)
Redlassification from/ {to) investment
property - 728 - (77902) _ (77.174)
Balance at 31 December 2019/
1 danuary, 2020 2,645325 1,201,513 206455 585,355 4,638,648
Additons 1,892 653 69,558 72,103
Disposals - {38,100) - - (38,100)
Inflation adjustments - (441) - - {441)
Adjustment on revaluation 6,764 - . - 6,784
Exchange differences 1,177 (1,686) (606) (3,515) (4,630)
Reclassification from/ (to) investmant
property - 53,760 18,931 - 73,691
Prior year correction . 5,069 - - 5069
Balance at 31 December 2020 —26053.286 1,222,007 226433 651,398 4,753,124
Depreciation
Bafance at 1 January 2019 (2,854,011) (1,327,644) (138,015) (398,960) (4,718,630)
Charge for the year (2,281) {49,418) {14,538) - (66,237)
On dispasals - 171,952 5,577 - 177,529
Inflation adjustment 384 - - 384
Disposals from disposals of
subsidlaries 239,707 101,997 2,008 - 343,712
Redagsification to assats held for sale - - {3432} - (3.432)
Balance at 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020 (2,616,585) (1,102,729) (148,400)  (398,960) (4,266,674)
Charge for the year (1,728) (36,674) (12,907) - {51,309)
Prior year correction - (5,493) - {5,493)
Inflation adjustment - 384 - - _384
Balance at 31 December 2020 __ 2,618,313 1,144512 161,307 398,960 4,323,002
Net book amount
Balance at 31 December 2020 34973 77495, 65126 253438 430,032
Balance at 31 December 2019 28,740 28,784 58,055 186,395 371974
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14. Investment properties

2029 2019
€ £
Balance at 1 January 41,095,097 55,768,223
Redlasslfication to Non current assets held for sale (Note 20) {4064,000) -
Additions 18,783,248 143,630
Disposals - (5,178,304)
Reversal/Corrections of reclassification - (1,586)
Transfer {to)/from property, piant and equipment (73,691) 77,174
Exchange differences (798,396) (1,130,225)
Fair value adjusment 5,675,074 544,338
Derenognition of IP from disposal of subsidiary - (9,128,153)
Adjustment for impalrment _1,046 -
Balance at 31 December -—04:278378 41 7
15. Non-current feans recelvable
2020 2019
€ €
Loans receivable 1,564,849 -
Loans to associates (Note 25.1) — 3,167,977 383,613
4,732,826 2,383,613
Less current portion —{1,564.849) _ (238361
Non-current portion 3,167,977 .
e —
The loans are repayable as follows:
2020 2019
€ €
Within one year 1,564,849 2,383,613
Between one and five years - 2167,977 -
4‘73mg 2,&&1;

The exposure of the Group to credit risk In relation to loans receivable Is reported in note 5 of the consolidated

finandial statements.
The falr values of non-current receivables approximate to their carrying amounts as presented above,

16. Inventories
2020 2019
€ €
Raw materials 15475 58,929
FAnished products 2,086 4,763
Goods for resale 48 49
17,609 63,741

Inventories are stated at cost.
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17. Trade and other recelvables
2020 2019
€ £
Trade receivables 606,113 714,940
Refundable taxes 92,219 77,647
Deferred expenses 15,712 12,881
Other receivables 2216 17,704,443
716,260 18,509,911

The fair values of trade and other recelvables due within one year approximate to their camrying amounts as
presented above,

The exposure of the Group to aredit risk and impalrment losses In relation to trade and other recelvables fs reported
In note 5 of the consolidated financlal statements.

18. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2020 2019
€ €
Balance at 1 January 4,725,927 2,160,611
Additons - 1,804,071
Disposais - {4,897)
Redasslfication of Administrare Imobillare - 171,247
Derecognition from disposal of SIFI TM Agro SA - (386)
Valuation adjustment 1,030,244 549,200
Change In fair value (54,032) 98,829
Exchange differences — (94,742)  (52,748)
Balance at 31 December 54507.397 4,725,927
19. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash balances are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
€ €
Cash at bank and in hand 5,263,189 9,711,592
Bank deposits -  2,709.415 477,750
8,972,604 13189342

The exposure of the Group to credit risk and impalment losses in relation to cash and cash equivalents is reported In
note 5 of the consolidated financlal statements,
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20. Assets classified as held for sale

The following major classes of assets and llabilities relating to this operation have been classified as held for sale In
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Investment

properties

€

Transfers from Investment properties (Note 14) 404,000

Balance at 31 December 2020 404,000

The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net camying amount of the relevant assets and liablliies and,
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised on the dassification of these operations as held for sale.

21. Share capital
2020 2020 2019 2019
Number of Number of
shares € shares €
Authorised
Ordinary shares of €1 each 4,499,974 4,499,974 4,499,974 4,499,974
Issued and fully paid
Balance at 1 January — 4499974 4499974 4499974 4,495,974
Balance at 31 December 3499974 4499974 4499974 4,499,974
22. Borrowings
2020 2019
€ €
Current borrowings
Bank loans 4,774 287,479
Non-current borrowings
Bank Ioans — 2,350,845 4,316,550
Total 2355623, 4604009
Maturity of non-current borrewings:
2020 2019
€ €

Between two and five years e z350,849 4,316,550
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23, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated In full on all temporary differences under the llability method using the applicable tax rates

(Not= 12),

The movement on the deferred taxation account Is as follows:

Deferred tax liability

Balance at 1 January 2019

Charged/ (credited)
Balance at 31 Decumber 2019/ 1 January 2020

Charged/ (credited)
Balance at 31 December 2020

24, Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Sodal insurance and other taxes
Taxes payable

Accrugls

Cther creditors

Deferred income

2020

€

73,581
99,267
45,522
63,137
2,527,326

— 408511
3,217,344

Temporary
tax

differences
€

5,481,474

{561,514)

4,919,960
513,039

—5432,099

2019

€
153,421
128,059
89,182
130,979
371,631

687,952
— 1561225

The fair values of trade and other payables due within one year approximate to their carrying amounts as presented

above.

25. Related party transactions

The Company Is controlled by SIF Banat- Crisana S.A., Incorporated In Romanla, which owns 99.99% of the issued

share capital of SIF Imobliiare PLC.

The following transactions were cartied out with related parties:

25.1 Loans to related parties (Note 15)

Administrare Imobiliare SA

2020
€

3,167,977

2019
£

2,382,613
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25. Related party transactions (continued)

25.2 Sales of goods and services
2020 2019
€ €
Blofarm SA Bucuresti - 9,838
Vrancart SA - 20,453
Industrial Energy SRL 10,454 26 801
— 10458 5700

25.3 Purchases of goods and services

2020 2019
€ €
SIF Banat-Crisana SA - 8,080
Administrare Imobiliare SA — 4972632 48554
—i832 56,634

26. Contingent Nabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilitles as at 31 December 2020.

27. Commitments
The Group had no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2020.

28. Events after the reporting perfod

There were no material events after the reporting period, which have 2 bearing on the understanding of the
consplidabed fihancial statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 4 to 8
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC
MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Board of Directors presents its report and audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Incorporation

The Company SIF Imobiliare Plc was incorporated in Cyprus on 18 July 2013 as a public company under the
provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Principal activity and nature of operations of the Company
The principal activity of the Company, which Is unchanged from last year, Is to serve as a holding vehide of shares in

other entitfes and Is engaged in the provision of financing facllities to related entities.

Review of current position, future developments and performance of the Company's business
The Company's development to date, financial results and pesition a5 presented In the finandal statements are

cohsidened satisfactory.

Resuits
The Company's results for the year are set out on page 9. The net profit for the year attributable to the

shareholders of the Company amounted to €3,972,707 (2019: €7,580,460). On 31 December 2020 the total assets of
the Company were €46,211,765 (2019; €42,228,797) and the net assets of the Company were €46,164,914 (2019:

€42,192,207).

Dividends
The Company's Directors propose the following:
1. Part of the profit for year 2020, respectively, €3,959,977.12 will be distributed as dividends. The Company’s

directors propose the value of a dividend in the amount of (.88 €/share.
2. Part of the profit for year 2019, respectively, €5,614,961.78 corresponding to year 2019 will be distributed as
dividends. The Company’s directors propose the value of a dividend in the amount of 1.47 €/share.

Share capital
There were no changes in the share capital of the Company during the year under review.

Board of Directors
The members of the Company's Board of Directors as at 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report are

presented on page 1. All of them were members of the Board of Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association all Directors presently members of the Board continue In
office.
There were no significant changes In the assignment of responsibliities and remuneration of the Board of Directors.

Events after the reporting period
Any significant events that occurred after the end of the reporting period are described In note 21 to the financial

statements.

Independent Auditors
The Independent Auditors, Evoserve Auditers Limited, have expressed thelr willingness to continue in office and a

resolution giving authority to the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annuzl General
Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Chrystalla Mina
Director

Nicosia, 7 April 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of parent company SIF Imobillare PLC (the "Company™), which are
presented In pages 9 to 24 and comprise the statement of financial position as st 31 Dacember 2020, and the
statements of comprehensive Income, changes In equity and cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting polides.

In our opinlon, the accompanylng financial statements give a true and fair view of the financlal position of the parent
company as 2t 31 December 2020, and of its fnanclal performance and its cash flows for the year then ended In
accordance with Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unlon and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companles Law, Cap. 113.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibifities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibllites for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our repart. We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the finandal statements tn Cyprus, and we have fuifilled our cther
ethical responstbllitles In accordanca with these requirements and the JESBA Code. We belfeve that the evidence we

have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audlt matters are those matters that, in our professional judg=ment, were of most significance In our audit of
the finandal staternents of the cument period. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the
financlal statements as a whole, and in forming our opinkon thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinlon on

these matters.




evgserve

AUDIT « TAX « CONSULTING

Bvossrve Audion Linked
EvossrvaHouss, 7 Andrea Papskosta, P.C. 1037 Nizoda
P2. Bzt 21550 Befiharins Square, 1510 Micosla, Cyprins
Tel: 4357 224343 70, Foe: 5357 2243 43 72

emit infePewmsavect, Wiz evesavesy

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of invastment in subsidiaries (refer Ip Note 12 to the Financial Statements)

The Company holds investments in subsidiaries at the
total value of Euro 18.974.771 as at 31 December 2020
which represents approximately 41,06% of the total
assets of the Company. The subsidiarles held by the
Company are incorporated In Romania and their main
activities Is that of holding of investment properties in
Romania.

Management periodically evaluates the recoverability of
nvestments In subsidiares whenever indicators of
Impalrment are present, Indicators of impalrment
include such Items as declings in revenues, eamings or
cash flows or material adverse changes In the
economic of political stability, which may indicabe that
the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable. In
addition, management obtalns valuation reports for all
the Investment properties held from external
Independant valuators. Management assessment on
the valuation of the Investment Is subsidiaries Is based
on estimations and judgement.

The Investments in subsidiaties are stated at cost and
we consider the Impairment testing of the nvestment
In subsidiaries as a key audit matter due to thelr
sfgnificance on the statement of financlal position and
due to the fact that mapagement exercise significant
judgment and estimations.

Our audit procedures Included the following;

Evaluated the management assessment in
refation to the possible Impalrment of the
Investment in subsidiaries.

Obtalned the audited finandal statemants of
all of the subsidiaries and to assess whether
thers Is an Indication of Impalrment based on
thelr performance and thelr net assets vahre.

Based on our findings we have discussed with
the management the possible impalrment of
the investment in subsidiaries.

Obtalned the valuation reports performed from
independent valuatars in relation to the
Investment properties held by the subsidiaries
and to assess the Independence and the
qualifications of the external valuator.

Based on the results of our awdit procedures we have
obtzined adequate assurance in regard to the valuation

of the investment in subsidiaries,
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Independent Auditor’s Report {(continued)
To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Key audit matter

How our audit addresses the key audit matber

Recoverabifity of loans racelvables (refer to Nole 13 i the Finandial Statarmnents)

The Company has loans receivables of the tolal value
of Euro 24.154.843 as at 31 Decembar 2020 which
represents approximately 52,27% of the tolal assets of
the Company. The loans recelvable was granted to the
stibsidiaries of the Company In order to finance them
for their activitles.

Management periodically evaluates the recoverabliity of
loans recelvable whenever indicators of Impainment are
present. Indicators of impalmment include such ltems as
dedlines In revenues, earmings or cash flows or material
adverse changes in the economic or polltical stability in
which the borrower operates, which may Indicabe that
the carrying amount of the loan Is not recoverable.

We consider the recoverabllity of the loans receivable
as a key audit matter due to their significance oh the
staterment of financla! position and due to the fact that
the management exarcise significant judgment and
estimations in order fo assess whether there Is an
indication of impalrment in the loans recelvable.

Our audit procedures Included the following:

- BEvaluated the management assessment In
relation to the recoverabllity of the loans
recelvable.

- Reviewed the terms of the loan agreements
and whether all the conditions of the loan are

mat,

- Obtained the signed awdited finandial
statements of all of the subsidlaries and to
assess whether the subsidiaries have the
necessary assets to repay thelr debts.

Based on our findings we have assessed with
management the possible Impairment in the
value of the loans receivabla

Obtalned the valuation reports perfarmed from
independent valuators in relation to the
investment properties held by the subsidiaries
and to assess the independence and the
qualffications of the external valuatar,

Based on the results of our audIt procedures we have
obtained adeguate assurance regarding the
recoverabllity of the loans receivable.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other Information comprises the informati
Included in the management report, but does not include the finandlal statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinlon on the financial stabements does not cover the other Information and we do not exprass any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

In connection with our audit of the financlal stabsments, our responsibillty Is to read the other Information and, In
doing so, conskler whether the other Information Is materlally Inconsistent with the finandal statements or our
knowledge obtained In the audit or othetwlse appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report

that fact, We have nothing to repart in this regard,
Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view In
accordance with Interhational Financlal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unlon and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such Intemal control as the Board of Directors
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financlal statements, the Board of Directors Is responslble for assessing the Company’s abllity to
continue as a golng concern, disdosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the golng concermn
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors efther intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has ne realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors Is responsibls for overseeing the Company's financlal reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternents

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an audior's report that indudes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance
with ISAs wlll abways debect a materlal misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material If, Individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the
economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these finencial statements.

As part of ah audit n accordance with ISAs, we excrdse professional judgement and malntaln professional

skepﬁdsn throughout ihe audit. We also:
Identify and the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obiain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for cur opinlon. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting frotn fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
colluston, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemnal control,

. Obtain an undlerstanding of Internal contyol relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinfon on the effectiveness
of the Company’s Intemnal control.



eveservea sy
£.0, Gt 21550 Eleftheras Square, 1510 Moosty, Cyprny

AUDIT =« TAX « CONSULTING Teki 57 20403 43 70, Fur 4357 124343 72
OB RV0SE R B, WYL EVDS BIVE B

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and refated disclosures made by the Board of Directors,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the golng concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abiitty to continue as a golhg concem. If we
conclude that a materal uncertalnty exdsts, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the
related disclosures In the flnancial statements or, i such disdosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our concluslons are based on the audit evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the cverall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the -
disdlasures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and events In
manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communkate with the Board of Directors negarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, Induding any significant deficiencies in Internal controf that we identify during

otr audit.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters were of most significance
In the audit of the finandal statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe
these matters In our audftor’s report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when,
In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In our repart hecause the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelght the public Inberest benefits of such

communication.

Report on Other Legal Requirements

Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors and Statutory Audits of Annual and Cansolldated Accounts

Laws of 2017, we report the following:

. In our opinlon, the management report, has been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the
Cyprus Companies Law, Cap 113, and the Information given ks consistent with the financial statements,

. In our opinlon, and In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and ks environment
obtalned In the course of the audit, wa have not Identified material misstatements In the management

report.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

To the Members of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

Other Mattar

This report; Including the opinton, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In
accordance with Section 69 of the Auditors Law of 2017 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving this opinion,
accept or assume respansibiiity for any other purpose or to any other parson to whose knowledge this report may
come to.

The engagesnent partner on the audit resulting In this Independent auditor's report Is Constantinos Montls.

Constantines Montls, BSc ACA

Certificd Public Accountant and Registered Auditor

for and on behaif of

Evosarve Auditors Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

Nicosla, 07 Aprll 2021




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note € €

Dividend income 19.4 3,726,673 1,489,564
Loan interest income 523509 276,165
Gross profit 4,250,182 1,765,730
Other operating income 7 - 6,039,146
Administration expenses (74492) (60,985)
Operating profit 8 4,175,690 7,743,887
Net finance costs 9 (110,986) (116,371)

4,064,704 7,627,516

Profit before tax
Tax 10 {91.997) {47,056}
Net profit for the year 3,972,707 7,580,460
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the yaar 3 707 2380460

The notes on pages 13 to 24 form an integral part of these finandal statements.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assats
Investments In subsidiaries
Non-current loans receivable

Current assels

Loans receivable

Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss
Refundable taxes

Cash at bank

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retalned earnings

Total equity

Current liabilities
Other payables

Total llabliities
Total aquity and Habilitles

Note

12
13

16

i7

2020 2019

€ €

18,974,771 18,974,771
17,740,555

36,715.326 18974771

6,414,288 20,955,430

169,404 169,404

6,939 5,713

— 2905808 2113479

— 9496439 23,254 026

—S201.765 42,208,797

4,499,974 4,499,974

31,037,928 31,037,928

10,627,012 5,654,305

46,164.9 42,192,207

46,851 36,590
—— 46851 36500
ﬂ;lh?ﬁs 42,228 797

On 7 April 2021 the Board of Directors of SIF IMOBILIARE PLC authorised these finandal statements for issue,

Chrystalla Mina -
Director

The notes on pages 13 to 24 form an integrai part of thes financial statements.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2020

Share Share Retained

capital pramium earnings Total

€ € € €

Bailance at 1 January 2019 4,499,974 31,037,828 (926,155) 34,611,747
Comprehensive income

Net profit for the year - - 7,.580.460 7,580 460

Net profit for the year & - 3972707 3,972,707

Balance at 31 December 2020 299974 31,037,028 10627.012 46,164,914

Companies which do not distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the relevant tax law, within two years
after the end of the relevant tax year, will be deemed to have distributed as dividends 70% of these profits. Special
contribution for defence at the rate of 17% will be payable on such deemed dividend to the extent that the
shareholders for deemed dividend distribution purposes at the end of the period of two vears from the end of the
year of assessment to which the profits refer, are Cyprus tax residents and domiciled. From 1 March 2019, the
deemed dividend distribution is subject to a 1,70% contribution to the General Healthcare Systemn, Ingeased to
2,65% from I March 2020, with the exception of April 2020 until June 2020 when the 1,70% rate was applicable.
The amount of deemed distribution is reduced by any actuai dividends pald out of the profits of the relevant year at
any time. This spedial contribution for defence is payable by the Company for the account of the sharehokders.

The notes on pages 13 to 24 form an integral part of these financlal statements.
il




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Unrealised exchange loss

Profit from the sale of investments in subsidiaries
Dividend Income

Loan interest income

Bank Interest income

Changes in working caplital:
Decrease In receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables
Cash used in operations

Dividends recejved
Bank Interest received
Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans granted
Loains repayments received

Proceeds from sale of Investments in subsidlary undertakings
Net cash (wsed in)/generated from Investing activities

Net increasa In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2020 2019

Note € €
4,064,704 7,627,516

106,714 91,255

- (6,039,146}

194  (3,726,673) (1,489,554)
(523,509) (276,166)

—(16478) = -
{95,242) (86,105)

- 259

10,263 (329)

(84,981) (86,175)
3,695,365 1,489,564

13,841

(59,277} (51,825)
3,564,948 1351564

13 (2,911,791} (15459,785)
13 139,172 5,710,161
- 6,050,000

{2,772,619) 260,376
792,328 1,511,940
2,113,479 501,539

The notes on pages 13 to 24 form an integral part of these financlal statements.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

1. Incorporation and principal activities

Country of incorporation

The Company SIF IMOBILIARE PLC (the "Company”} was Incorporated in Cyprus on 18 July 2013 as a public
company under the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113. Its registered office Is at 30 Karpenisiou
Street, CY-1077, Nicosla, Cyprus.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company, which is unchanged from fast year, is to serve as a holding vehide of shares in
other entities and is engaged In the provision of financing facilities to related entities.

2. Basls of preparation

The Company has prepared these parent’s separate financial statements for compfiance with the requirements of the
Cyprus Income Tax Law.

The finandal statements have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union {EU) and the regquirements of the Cyprus Companles Law, Cap. 113. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modiified by the revaluation of, and financlal

assets and financial Nabllitles at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company has afso prepared consolidated finandal statements in accordance with IFRSs for the Company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group™). The consolidated finandial statements can be obtained from 30 Karpenisiou Street, CY

1077, Nicosla, Cyprus.

Users of these parent's separate financlal statements should read them together with the Group's consolidated
fnancial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2020 In order to obtain a proper understanding of the
finandal position, the financial performance and the cash flows of the Company and the Group.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical acoounting
estimates and requires Management to exercise its judament in the process of applying the Company’s acoounting
policies. It also requires the use of assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liablities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on Management's best
knowiledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

3, Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these finandal statements are set out below. Apart
from the accounting policy changes resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 effective from 1 January 2018, these
policles have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

13




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Consolidated financlal statements

The Company has subsidiary undertakings for which section 142(1)(b) of the Cyprus Companies Law Cap. 113
requires consofidated financlal statements to be prepared and laid before the Company at the Annual General
Meeting. The Group consolidated financial statements comprise the financial staternents of the parent company SIF
IMOBILIARE PLC and the financial statements of the following subsidiaries:

- Comalin SA

- SIFI BH EST 5A (ex. name: S.C. Legume Fructe S.A.)
- SIFT CLUJ Retall AS {ex. name: Arta Culinara SA)
= 5IFI CJ Logistic SA (ex. name: Comat Ciuj SA)

- SIFI CJ Agro SA (ex. name: Comcereal Cluj SA)

- SIFI C) Storage SA {ex. name: Napotex SA)

* Uniteh SA

- SIFI BH IND VEST SA (ex. name: Vest Metal 54)
- Bistrita Cluj SA

- SIF1 €) Office SA

- Cora SA

- SIFI Baia Mare SA {ex. name: M.C.B. SA)

- SIFL SIGHET SA {ex. name: Solza SA)

- SIFI B ONE SA

~ SIFI BH Retail S.A

-SIFI Properties SA

The finandal statements of all the Group companies are prepared using uniform accounting policies. All inter-
company transactions and balances between Group companies have been eliminated during consolidation,
Subsidiary companies

Subsidlaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists whera the Company is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from Its involvement with the Investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power

over the investee,

Investments in subsidiary companles are stated at cost less provision for Impalrment in value, which Is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the impairment Is Identified.

Revenue

. Interest income

Interest income Is recognised on a time-proportion basls using the effactive intersst method.

. Dividend income

Dividends are recefved from finandal assets measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL) and at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right to recelve payment is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In
this case, the dividend is recognised In OCI if it relates to an Investment measured at FYOCT.

Finance income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective method.,
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting poficies (continued)

Finance costs
Interest expense and other borrowing costs are charged to profit or loss as Incurred.

Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Items Induded in the Company’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates (*the functional currency®). The financial statements are
presented In Euro {€), which is the Company's functional and presentstion currency.

(2) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in forelgn currendes are recognised in profit or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items such as equitles held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or

loss.

Tax

Cumvent tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Dividends

Proposed dividends are recorded in the Company's finandial statements in the year in which they are approved by the
Company's sharehotdess.

Computer software

Costs that are directly assodiated with ldentifiable and unique computer software products controlled by the Company
and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year are recognised as intangible
assets. Subsequerntly computer software Is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
Impairment losses. Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programs beyond
their original specifications Is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the computer
software. Costs assodated with maintenance of computer software programs are recognised as an expense when
incurred. Computer software costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives, not exceeding
a perind of three years, Amortisation commences when the computer software Is available for use.

An Intanglble asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset s

derecognised.
Finandial assets

Financial assets - Classlfication

The Company dassifies its financial assets In the following measurement categories:
. those to be measured subsequently at fair vaiue (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financlal assets (continued)

Financial assets - Classification (continued)

The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: () the Company's business
model for managing the refated assets portfolio and (ii) the cash flow characteristics of the asset. On initial
recognition, the Company may Imevocably designate a debt financlal asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI or at FYTPL If doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch that would otherwise arise.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, the classification will depend on whether the

Company has made an irevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT). This election is made on an investment-by-Investment

basis.
All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL

For assets measured at falr vaiue, galns and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of inltial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other

tomprehensive income (FYOCT).

Financial assets - Recognition and derecognition

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or
market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which Is the date when the
Company commits to defiver a finandial instrum=nt. All other purchases and sales are recognised when the enfity

becomes a party io the contractual pravisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets - Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures 2 financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of finandal assets carried at FVTPL are expensed In profit or ioss. Fair value at
inttial recognition Is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition ls only recorded if
there Is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current
market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs indude only data from

observable markets.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Financial assets ~-Reclassification

Financial Instruments are reclassified only when the business model for managing those assets changes. The
redlassification has a prospective effect and takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the

change.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share capltal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The difference between the fair value of the consideration received by the
Company and the nominal value of the share caplital being Issued Is taken to the share premium acoount.

Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

4. New nccounting pronouncements

At the date of approval of these financial statements, standards and interpretations were Issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board which were not yet effective. Some of them were adopted by the European Union and
others rot yet. The Board of Directors expects that the adoption of these accounting standards in future periods will
not have a material effect on the finandal statements of the Company.

5. Finandal risk management

Financlal risk factors
The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and capital risk management arisfng from the
financlal Instruments it hokls. The risk management policles employed by the Company to manage these risks are

discussed balow:

5.1 Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk that one party to a financial Instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to

meet an obligation. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt Investments
carried at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL), favourable derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit expostires to wholesale and retail customers, indluding outstanding receivables and contract assets as well
as lease receivables. Further, credit risk arfses from financial guarantees and credit related commitments.

5.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk s the risk that arises when the maturity of assets and fiabllities does not match. An unmatched position

potentially enhances profitabliity, but can also increase the risk of losses. The Company has procedures with the
object of minimising such losses such as maintaining liquid current assets and by having avallable an adequate

amount of committed credit facilities,

5.3 Currency risk }
Currency risk Is the Hsk that the value of financial Instruments will fluctuate due changes In foreign exchange

rates. Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and Jabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the Company's measurement currency. The Company Is exposed to forelgn exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures. The Company's Management monitors the exchange rate fluctuations on a
oontinuous basls and acts accordingly.

5.4 Capital risk management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that It will be able to continue as a going concemn while maximising the

return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Company's overall strategy
remains unchanged from last year.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

6. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of finandal statements In conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and requires Management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies, It also requires the use of assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liablilies at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on Management's best
knowledge of cumrent events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
induding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the drcumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabiliies within the next financial year are discussed below:

. Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
cakculations for which the uitimate tar determination s uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit Issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were Initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferned tax pravisions in the period in which such

determination Is made.

. Fair value of finandial assets

The fair value of finandal instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. The fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income has been estimated based on the fair value of

these individual assets.

. Impairment of investments In subsidiaries

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of investments in subsidiaries whenever Indicators of
impalrment are present. Indicators of impairment indude such items as declines in revenues, eamings or
cash flows or material adverse changes In the economic or political stability of a particular country, which
may indicate that the carrying amount of an asset s not recoverable. If facts and circumstances indicate that
investment in subsidiaries may be impaired, the estimated future discounted cash flows associated with
these subsidiarles would be compared to thelr canying amounts to determine if a write-down to fair value Is

necessary.
= Impalrment of loans recelvable

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of loans recelvable whenever indicators of impairment
are present. Indicators of impairment. include such lkems as declines in revenues, earnings or cash flows or
material adverse changes in the economic or political stabifity of a particular country in which the borrower
operates, which may Indicate that the carrying amount of the loan s not recoverable. I facts and
drcumstances indicate that loans receivable may be Impaired, the estimated future discounted cash flows
assodiated with these loans would be compared to thelr carrying amounts to determine if a write-down to

falr value is necessary.

7. Other operating incoma
2020 2019

Profit from sale of investments in subsidiaries - 6,032,146
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

8. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging the following items:
Auditors' remuneration

9. Finance Income/(costs)

Interest income
Finance income

Net forelgn exchange losses
Sundry finance expenses
Finance costs

Net finance costs

10. Tax

Corporation tax
Overseas tax
Charge for the year

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from theoretical amount

rates as follows:

Proflt before tax

Tax caloulated at the applicable tax rates
Tax effect of expenses not dedudtible for tax purposes
Tax effect of allowances and income not subject to tax

Overseas tax
Tax charge

The corporation tax rate Is 12,5%.

2020 2019

€ €

2020 2019

€ €

— 16478 2 = 0o 0 -
16,478 -

{(127,127) (113,972)

33 (2,399)

—(127464) _ (1316,371)

11 6 (116,371)

2020 2018

€ €

58,052 28,245
1

9:!1 192 47,056

that would arise using the applicable tax

2020 2019
€

€
4 704 7,627,516

508,088 953,440

17,858 15,895
(466,246)  (941,09D)

— 32297 18811
91,007 42,056

Under certain conditions Interest Income may be subject to defence contribution at the rate of 30%. In such cases
this interest will be exempt from corperation tax. In certain cases, dividends received from abroad may be subject to

defence contribution at the rate of 17%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

11. Intangible assets

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2019

Balance at 31 December 2019/ 1 January 2020
Balance at 31 December 2020

Amortisation

Balance at 1 January 2019

Balance at 31 December 2019/ 1 January 2020
Balance at 31 December 2020

Net book amount
Balance at 31 December 2020

The Company maintains the website http://sif-moblliare.ro/.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST, ATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

12. Investments in subsidiaries

Balance at 1 January
Disposals
Balance at 31 December

The detalls of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Comalin SA Investment
property
SIFI BH EST SA Investment
property
SIFI CLUJ Retgil SA Investment
property
SIFI CJ Logistic SA Investment
property
SIFI C Agra SA Trade with cereals
SIFI CJ Storage SA Investment
property
Uniteh SA Investment
property
SIFI BH IND VEST SA Investment
property
Bistrita Cluj SA Investment
property
SIFI CJ OFFICE SA Investment
property
CORA SA {Note 1) Investment
property
SIFI BAIA MARE SA Investment
property
SIFI SIGHET SA Investment
property
SIFI B ONE SA Irvestrent
property
SIFI BH Retail SA Investment
property
SIFI Properties SA Investment
property

2020
Holding

91.17:%
94.7665
96.364D
84.7835

97.5043
92.0989

50.1978
98.9458
91.9778
98.8252
96.3268
92.5906
72.2816
90.7874
99.9000
$9.9000

2020 2019

€ €

18,974,771 18,985,625

= (10854)

8874771 18074771

2019

Holding 2020 2019
% € €
91.1715 3,092,601 3,002,601
94,7665 814,778 814,778
96.3640 6,009,084 6,009,094
84.7435 871,303 871,303
97.543 1,171,918 1,171,918
92,0989 781,685 781,685
50.1978 1,176,318 1,176,319
98.9458 1,747,017 1,747,017
91.9778 291,159 291,159
98.8252 1,229,297 1,229,297
93.9631 404,053 404,053
92,5906 925,672 925,672
72.2816 300,074 300,074
90.7874 112,379 112,379
99.9000 20,513 20,513
99.9000 26,909 26,909
18974771 18974771

1: Cora SA decreased its share capital from 108,483 shares to 105,821 on 28.05.2020. The number of shares held
by the Company remained the same (101,934 shares) but due to the decrease of the total number of shares the

percentage held by SIF Imobiliare PLC was increased from 93.9631% to 96.3268%.
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SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2020

13. Non-current loans recelvable
2020 2019
€ €
Balance at 1 January 20,965,430 14,990,895
New loans granted 2,911,791 15,499,785
Repayments (139,172} (9,710,161)
Interest charged $23,509 276,166
Exchange difference {106,715 {91,255}
Balance at 31 December 24,154,843 20,965,430
2020 2019
€ €
Loans receivable 1,564,849 -
Leans to own subsidiaries (Nobe 19.1) 19,422,017 18,581,817
Loans to refated parties (Note 19.2) 3,167,977 2,383,613
24,154,843 20,965,430
Less current portion — (6,424,288} (20,965,430)
Non-current portion —1Z,740.555 -
L — |
The loans are repayable as follows:
2020 2019
€ €
Within one year 6,414,288 20,965,430
Between one and five years 17,740,555 -
—34,154843 20965430

The exposure of the Company to credit risk In relation to loans recelvable is reported in nate 5 of the financial

statements.

The fair values of non-current receivables approximate to thelr carmying amounts as presented above.

14, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2020 2019

€ €

Balance at 1 January 169,404 169 404
Balance at 31 December 169,404 169,404

In the statement of cash fiows, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within the section on
operating activities as part of changes in working capital, In the statement of comprehensive income, changes in falr
values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in operating income.

15. Cash at bank
For the purposes of the stabement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents indude the following:
2020 2019
€ €
Cash at bank 2,905,808 2113475




SIF IMOBILIARE PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020

15. Cash at bank (continued)

The exposure of the Company to credit risk and Impairment losses in relation to cash and cash equivalents Is

reported in note 5 of the financial statements.

16. Share capital
2020 2020 2019 2019
Number of Number of
shares € shares €
Authorised
Ordinary shares €1 each 4,499,974 4,499,974 4,499,974 4,499,974
Issued and fully paid
Balance &t 1 January 4,499,974 4.499 974 4,499,974 4,499,974
Balance at 31 December 4,499,974 3,499,974 4,499,974 4,499,574
17. Other payables
2020 2019
€ €
Actruals 38,624 36,590
Other areditors 8,227 -
46,851 36,590

The fair values of other payables due within one year approximate to their carrylng amounts as presented above.,

18. Refundable taxes

Corporation tax

19. Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

19.1 Loans to subsidiaries (Note 13)

SIFI C) QFFICE S.A.-principal amount
SIFT CJ OFFICE S.A-accrued interest
SIFI CJ AGRO S.A.-principal amount
SIFI C] AGRO S.A.-accrued interest
SIFI B ONE SA-princlpal amount

SIFT B ONE SA- accrued interest

SIFI BH RETAIL-principal amount
SIFI BH RETAIL- accrued interest

The loans recelvable from the subsidiaries bear interest 1% and

2021 and 2022.

2020 2019
€ €
—{6:839)__(5713)
2020 2019
€ €
198,172
5,941 -
107,629
1,024 -
410,000 410,000
28,138 24,027
18,052,383 17,804,063
619,179 343727
19,422,466 _ 18581817

3.5% per annum and are expected to be repaid In
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19. Related party transactions (continued)
19.2 Loans to related parties (Note 13)

Administrare Imobiliare SA-prindpal amount
Administrare Imobillare SA- accrued Interest

The loans receivable from Administrare Imobiliare SA bear |
repaid In 2021 and 2022.

19.3 Interest Income

Administrare Imoblilare
SIFI TM AGRO

SIFI B ONE SA

SIFI BH RETAIL

SIFI CJ OFFICE S.A
SIFI C1 AGRO S.A.

19.4 Dividend Income

SIFI C7 Storage SA
Comalim SA

Cluj Retail SA

SIFT Sighet SA

SIFI Bala Mare SA
SIFI BH IND VEST S.A.
SIFI CJ Logistic SA
Cora SA

SIFI B One SA

Uniteh SA

20. Commitments

The Company had no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2020.

21. Events after the reporting perlod

2020 2019

€ €
2,981,502 2,275,925
186,475 107,688
3,167, 2,383,613

nterest 1% and 3,5% per annum and are expected to be

2020 2019

€ €

79,763 49,289

- 9,865

4,111 4,100

278,257 212,912
5,503 :
1,024 -

—308,658 __ 276,166

2020 2019

€ €

228,609 159,379

149,486 123,136

748,521 661,583

32,736 20,169

69,977 68,807
248,307 :

- 63,196

32,416 42,940

- 322,274

2,216,622 28,080

3.726,674 1489564

There were no materlal events after the reporting period, which have a bearing on the understanding of the financial

statements,

Independent auditor's report on pages 3 to 8
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